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Board and Committees

EEERERS

BOARD

Executive Directors

Wang Dongbin (Chairman)

Wu Hongyuan (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Kangying (Note)

WU Zhanjiang MNete)

Independent Non-executive Directors
NG Kong Fat

HAN Bin

WANG Peng

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

NG Kong Fat (Chairman)
HAN Bin

WANG Peng

Nomination Committee
WANG Dongbin (Chairman)
HAN Bin

WANG Peng

Remuneration Committee
HAN Bin (Chairman)

NG Kong Fat

WANG Dongbin

Note:  Mr. Li Kangying and Mr. Wu Zhanjiang were appointed as
executive Directors of the Company on 24 July 2018. Details
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 July
2018.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEEREREBAER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman and executive Director

Mr. WANG Dongbin, aged 50, is a founder of our Group
and our Chairman and executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for the overall business corporate strategies
planning and development of our Group.

He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in modern physics
application from Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 1990.
He obtained a master’'s degree in nuclear physics from
Tsinghua University in July 1992.

Mr. Wang has over 20 years of experience in the information
technology industry. Prior to founding of our Group, Mr.
Wang started his career in the industry when he was first
employed as a technical director by Beijing Teletron Internet
Technology Company Ltd. between May 1996 and June
2001. He then joined Becom Software Co, Ltd. as the general
manager between July 2001 and April 2008. Between May
2008 and July 2012, he was the executive director and
the general manager of Beijing Jietong Yishin Technology
Development Company Limited. Through his industry-related
working experience, Mr. Wang has accumulated industry
knowledge and market understanding for the information
technology related industry.

Chief Executive Officer and executive Director

Mr. WU Hongyuan, aged 45, is our Chief Executive
Officer and executive Director. He is primarily responsible
for the operation and management of our Group. Mr.
Wu Hongyuan joined our Group in December 2011 as the
general manager of research and development and customer
service department of Along Grid and was promoted to
the general manager of Along Grid in April 2014. Mr.
Wu Hongyuan graduated from Beijing Electricity College
(being incorporated into the Beijing Jiaotong University in
2000) in the PRC in July 1994, majoring in electricity system
communication.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEREREEBAR

Mr. Wu Hongyuan has over 20 years of experience in the
electric power selling and management system industry. Prior
to joining of our Group, he started his career as a teaching
staff in the information engineering department of North
China Electric Power University between July 1994 and
October 2007. He was then employed by the Beijing Puhua
Yalong Technology Company Limited as the deputy general
manager between November 2007 and December 2011.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kong Fat, aged 62, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 5 February 2018.
He graduated from the University of Stirling in Scotland in
1983 and was admitted as a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Scotland in May 1987. Mr. Ng
has over 20 years of experience in corporate, investment
and financial management. Mr. Ng has joined the Beijing
Enterprises Environment Group Limited (stock code: 154),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and principally engaged in solid waste treatment business in
the PRC, as an executive director since July 1993.

Mr. HAN Bin, aged 64, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 5 February 2018. He graduated
from North China Electric Power University (previously known
as the North China Electric Power College) (“North China
Electric Power University”) in the PRC in December 1979,
majoring in electricity system communication.

Mr. Han Bin has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power selling and management system market in the PRC.
Between August 1989 and November 1992, he joined
Tsingtao Electricity Supply Company (previously known as the
Tsingtao Electricity Affair Department) where he had worked
at various positions, including assistant engineer, engineer
and deputy head of the system operation department.
Between December 1992 and May 1999, he joined China
Fulin Wind Power Development Company where he had
worked as the deputy general manager of the project
department. Between June 1999 and October 2013, he
joined China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited
(previously known as Longyuan Power Group Limited) where
he had worked at various positions, including assistant of
the general manager, deputy chief engineer and project
development department officer.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEREREEAER

Mr. WANG Peng, aged 44, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 5 February 2018. He
graduated from the North China Electric Power University
in the PRC in July 1994, majoring in electricity system and
automation of electricity system. He obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from the North China Electric Power
University in January 1997. He then obtained a doctor’s
degree in electricity system and automation of electricity
system from the North China Electric Power University in
April 2002.

Between April 1997 and May 2005, Mr. Wang Peng worked
in North China Electric Power University as a teaching staff.
Mr. Wang Peng was qualified as an associate professor from
North China Electric Power University in November 2003.
Between May 2005 and May 2015, he worked in National
Energy Administration North China Regulatory Authority)
(previously known as National Electricity Regulatory
Commission North China Regulatory Authority). Since May
2015, he has become a professor of North China Electric
Power University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LI Yanmin, aged 53, is the deputy general manager of
our Group. Mr. Li Yanmin joined our Group in October 2012
as the general manager of the research and development
and customer service department of our Group and was
promoted to the deputy general manager of our Group
in April 2016. He is primarily responsible for project
management for Software Systems and hardware of our
Group. Mr. Li Yanmin graduated with a bachelor’s degree
in electricity engineering from Wuhan University (previously
known as Wuhan Hydro Electricity Institute) in the PRC in July
1987. He obtained a master’s degree in electricity system and
automation of electricity system from North China Electric
Power University in January 1993.

Mr. Li Yanmin has over 20 years of experience in the electric
power selling and management system industry in the
PRC. Prior to joining our Group, between July 1987 and
September 1990, and between July 1993 and October
2007, Mr. Li served as a teacher in North China Electric
Power University. Between November 2007 and September
2012, he served as the deputy general manager of Beijing
Puhua Yalong Technology Company Limited, where he was
responsible for software and technology development.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESEREREEBAR

Mr. ZHU Enlei, ACA, CICPA, aged 37, was appointed as
the chief financial officer of our Group in October 2016 and
was primarily responsible for financial management and
compliance assurance of our Group. Mr. Zhu Enlei graduated
with a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
the Capital University of Economics and Business in the PRC
in July 2003. He obtained a master degree in enterprise
management from the Capital University of Economics
and Business in July 2006. Mr. Zhu Enlei was admitted
as a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountant in August 2008 and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in July 2011.

Mr. Zhu Enlei has over 10 years of international experience in
auditing, accounting and financial reporting. Prior to joining
our Group, between August 2006 and September 2016,
Mr. Zhu served as a senior manager of KPMG Huazhen LLP,
where he was responsible for audit and accounting work.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. YUEN Wing Yan, Winnie, aged 47, was appointed as
the company secretary of our Company on 30 November
2016 and is responsible for the company secretarial matters
of our Group. Ms. Yuen is a director of corporate services
of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”). Ms. Yuen graduated
from Lingnan College (now known as Lingnan University). In
October 2012, Ms. Yuen was admitted as a fellow of both
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom.

Ms. Yuen has over 20 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field. She has been providing professional
corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well
as multinational, private and offshore companies. Prior to
joining Tricor in January 2004, Ms. Yuen was a manager of
company secretarial department of Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong, where she was responsible for handling various
company secretarial matters of various clients. Ms. Yuen is
currently the company secretary of two listed companies on
the Stock Exchange, namely, China First Chemical Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2121) and Genes Tech Group Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 8257).
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 (refer to as
“financial year").

As an information technology service provider, the Group is
dedicated to technical innovation and its application in smart
energy industry. The Group provides tailor-made software
systems, technical services and hardware equipment to
various types of energy companies.

With its continuous performance achieved in providing
information technology services to China’s electric power
industry, the Group entered into another significant
milestone in its history of development and was successfully
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange on 2 March
2018 (the "Listing Date”). This achievement is significant
to the Group as it enables the Group to gain access to the
international capital markets, enhance its corporate and
brand image, and further strengthen its leading position in
the market sector.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®E

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017 calendar year, China’s GDP amounted to
approximately RMB82.7 trillion, representing a growth rate
of approximately 6.9% per annum. Such steady growth
in overall economy provides solid support for increase in
demands for energy resources. Meanwhile, there were
clear signs of improvement in demands for electricity in the
market. In accordance with statistics published by National
Energy Agency, the gross electricity consumption in China
in 2017 amounted to approximately 6,307.7 billion kWh,
representing a growth rate of approximately 6.6% per
annum, which was the second consecutive year recording
such growth.

In recent years, the problem of smog has caused a greater
extent of attention, and government authorities have
published a number of policies to reduce carbon emission
and improve air quality. Electricity, in comparison with fossil
fuels, is a cleaner energy type.

In the 13th Five Year Plan on Electric Power Development
(KEHERI+ =1 ] & )) the state administration
proposed to accelerate industry-wide reform and upgrading,
and to achieve the transformation into a modern electric
power industry featured with low carbon emission, safety
and efficiency. Under the circumstances of mild economic
background, expanding market demands and favourable
industrial policies, the Group maintained its business focus in
China’s electric power industry and achieved steady business
operation and development in the past year.

In its software systems and technical services businesses,
the Group further strengthened its trusted relationship with
major customers such as State Grid Corporation of China
("SGCC"), Inner Mongolia Power (Group) Co., Ltd. (“IMPG")
and Tianjin TEDA lJinlian Electric Power Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin
TEDA"). In addition to meeting their existing demands and
requirements, the Group, by providing more comprehensive
range of products and services, has successfully facilitated
its customers to further reform its electric power business,
improve operation efficiency, and extend its customer reach
to a broad range of industrial and domestic end users for
convenient and efficient electricity services.
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)ﬁﬂﬂ[ lll [

l\iI

e dE) ]

CIEE2017F (BIHEFE])  vEHE2FE
NAEEBEEINARELDS2.7EET - Rkt
BRL6.9% @ BB R - HELRFK
BEERE - B R - FRENF KBRS
R BRERRERBAMNE
017F2F 2 gHESE A63, 0771 T EL
B FAILLIEEXN66%  2HeREEEE
MEBELRIER -

MFBERBRESIER  EREREL
BERDBHNE - EEREE - ME(L
ARERAELL - BREREIRRAIRLR °

BRECENERIT =0 BRE)FIRE &
REXFEENL  BEAR  BERBEEE
fix RERBNBERENTERER - EXE
BRI - BREFBRIBAMERBURK
FORRET - AEEBDEBE —FRHE
BNTTRESCRET SRR - #ER
REAXRBORTETHER

R R AR AR R B IR - AR @
—HRETERRERAR((BERER])
AREEN (B BREER T(Wﬂ%ﬁ*
HEE]) EREFERBENEREER
(F?Eié’?%LJ)ﬁix%ﬁ{ﬁwtﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁ%ﬁ
B EREEPERARKNRAE  BBEE
% EERMER - BR - BEEORE - B
BN ELTE R A RRARAENEBE
BUER - REZ BEMNEERPIRMHER
=RH) TR EERBERS

B e u;“[m ﬁ;'



el . I T e

&

Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

In response to and in order to leverage the opportunities
brought by the New Reform in China’s electric power
industry, the Group, based on its dedicated investments and
reserves in “cloud computing”, “big data” and “mobile
internet” and other new and advanced technologies,
successfully launched OneForce Cloud Smart Energy
Service Platform (“OneForce Cloud”, previously known as
“Huidianyun”) in December 2017. OneForce Cloud is another
showcase of the Group’s commitment in technological
innovation and its commercial application and is a significant
milestone of its efforts to switch its existing products and
service offerings to Software as a Service (“SaaS"). OneForce
Cloud is its core development platform in the coming new
technological era.

As a cloud-based service platform, OneForce Platform
will fundamentally change the way the Group delivers its
products to its customers from traditional products and
service offerings to SaaS and cloud-based technical services.
Via OneForce Cloud, the Group is capable of applying the
latest development in relation to “cloud computing”, “big
data” and “mobile internet” and other new and advanced
technologies to its customers, which in turn, would further
enhance their business operations. In addition, OneForce
Cloud is also capable of providing smart energy related
information technology services to various energy companies
(including electric power, water, gas and heat) in public utility
sectors. For small and medium size energy companies, they
no longer need to invest heavily in developing a software
system for the management of their smart energy related
business operation. Rather, they can now achieve the same
purpose by subscribing for the Group’s cloud-based services,
which not only equip them with the latest product functions
and services, but also save the costs of procurement,
development and maintenance of related software and
hardware.

As of 31 March 2018, the Group has completed the first
phase development and commercialisation of OneForce
Cloud, which is specifically designed for and provides
necessary functions and features for the operation of
electric power selling and management business of newly
established electric retailing companies arising. As of the
date of this report, the Group has entered into annual service
subscription agreements with 11 electric power retailing
companies to subscribe for its annual OneForce Cloud
services, which, in turn, has brought economic benefits to
the Group. Going forward, the Group will further enhance
and strengthen its OneForce Cloud platform to improve more
advanced features and functions, such as electric power
load forecasting and bidding support system, as a result of
industrial and technological development.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®E

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT

The Group operates in China’s energy industry, which has
experienced rapid development with reform goes deep into
its structure. Electric power industry, in particular, has made
breakthroughs in certain key areas: pilots in incremental
distribution grids, kick-off of verification in transmission
and distribution price, and development in electric power
exchange market, etc.. In this respect, electric power grid
companies are experimenting new ways, and exploring new
business and markets.

The above changes requested the Group to work closely
with its customers, such as SGCC, IMPG and Tianjin TEDA,
to promote innovation and embrace challenges. Meanwhile,
it also brings new business opportunities. With continuing
technological innovation as well as transformation and
upgrading in economic structure, the Group will commit
to its investments in research and development in “cloud
computing, big data and mobile internet” and other new
technologies and applications, and leverage the opportunities
brought by economic and industrial development.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to present its great appreciation to the
management team and employees of the Group who have
contributed to the success of the Group and are working
towards achieving the Group's visions. Heartfelt gratitude
is also expressed to all of the business partners, customers,
suppliers of the Group and the Shareholders. With their kind
support and trust, the Board is confident that it will lead the
Group to another milestone.

By order of the Board
OneForce Holdings Limited
WANG Dongbin

Chairman

Beijing, China, 22 June 2018
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CEO's Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

THASODEREEEN®

The Group primarily engages in the provision of information
technology services to various electric power grid companies,
electric power distribution and retailing companies, and
electric power users, etc. in China’s electric power industry.
Our product/service offerings primarily include: electric power
related software systems, technical services and hardware.

OUR INDUSTRY

Electric power industry provides basis for the operation of an
economy, along with the development of China’s economy,
electric power industry has been proactively undergoing
restructuring and adjustment in development model. Electric
power grid connects energy production and consumption,
links its distribution, transformation and usage, which makes
it the centre of reform of the industry. Electric power grid
in future, will evolve toward energy interconnection, and
push another round of technology advancement. Promote
the development electric power grid is the key to stable
operation of national economy.

For the past year, the industry the Group operates has
exhibited the following major features:

Increasing demands with structure optimisation

The overall electric power demands in China showed a
notable sign of improvement in 2017 calendar year. Based
on statistics by National Energy Administration, the total
volume of electric power consumption in 2017 amounted to
6.3077 billion kWh, representing a growth rate of 6.6%, and
is the second consecutive year to record a growth.

Continuing reform in electric power industry

Reform in electric power industry has made key breakthrough
and is more cleared to be market oriented. (i) the pattern
of pilot run with multiple models has been established; (ii)
reform in electric power transmission and distribution prices
covered all major provincial level grids, and cross-province
price verification has been rolled out so as to promote cross-
province electric power exchange; (iii) the process of setting
up market institutes for electric power exchange has been
largely completed, and a total of 34 independent electric
power exchanges have been established; (iv) the opening of
electric power distribution and retailing sectors is speeding
up, a total of 195 incremental electric power distribution
pilots have been approved in 2 batches.
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The construction of smart grid leads IT investments

With slowdown in economic growth in recent years,
the demand for information technology (“IT") related
construction has switched from short-term, large volume
supply to fine and tailored service supplies. Electric power
grid related IT investments, and smart power grid in
particular, is the key driving force to maintain rapid growth
in industry wide IT investments.

IT development in public utility sectors

With a new round of nation-wide investments in public utility
sectors, related advancement in IT has also embraced new
era of rapid development. As the construction of business
operation system is being completed, future lies in system
interfacing and migration.

The above-mentioned outlook and trends in China’s electric
power industry, have all come to the fact that reform in
electric power industry is going to accelerate in speed and
strengthen in intensity and electric power exchange will be
more market oriented, which will brings new opportunities
to the industry as a whole.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Based on years of experience in China’s electric power
industry, the Group has formed its core competitive strengths
in industry knowledge and experience, technological
expertise, tailored make products, as well as comprehensive
service system.

Industry knowledge and experience

Our experienced executive Directors and senior management
team are all with relevant technological and research and
development ("R&D") background and has accumulated a
wealth of industrial experience and resources since 1996, the
debut of their respective careers in China’s electric power
industry. Furthermore, their sound technological experience
and business know-how, are one of the key cornerstones
for high customer satisfaction to our product and service
offerings, reputation of our brand as well as our leading
market position in serving local electric power companies.
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Technological expertise

The Group’s consistent emphasis on technological expertise
can be traced back the incorporation of our operating
subsidiary in the PRC namely Beijing Along Grid Technology
Co., Ltd. ("Along Grid”) in 2011. As of the date of this
report, the Group has registered 37 computer software
copyrights in the PRC. Along Grid, has also been accredited
the certificates of CMMI Level 3, ISO 9001 and ISO 20000,
as well as System Integration Level 3, etc.. Meanwhile, Along
Grid has also been accredited as “High and New Technology
Enterprise” by Beijing municipal government since November
2013.

Based on our technological expertise, the Group developed
the Along Grid Research and Development Support
Platform (“ARSP”) with core propriety intellectual property
rights. ARSP is constructed based on the concept of
“cloud computing, big data, internet of things and mobile
internet” and is dedicated to offer our customers with a
comprehensive range of products and services, in particular,
our tailor-made Application Solutions.

Leveraging our ARSP, the Group developed and went live of
OneForce Cloud. The rolled out and commercial operation of
OneForce Cloud illustrated the Group’s technology expertise
and R&D capabilities in cloud computing and mobile internet,
as well as its subsequent commercialisation.

Products and market position

By utilising ARSP and OneForce Cloud, we are capable of
providing tailor-made Application Solutions and Technical
Services to our customers and based on each of their unique
requirements.

Based on our knowledge and experience in customers’
system, in together with our tailor-made products and
services, the Group earned ideal customer satisfaction of
our Application Solutions, and the current leading market
position in providing electric power selling and management
systems to local electric power companies.
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Service network

In addition to technological expertise, the Group has built
up a nation-wide service network during the course of
providing Technical Services to our customers. Our technical
service team covering 26 provinces, autonomous regions and
municipalities, with SGCC's grid operation, as well as over
30 municipal cities, leagues, banners and counties in Inner
Mongolia autonomous regions with IMPG’s grid operation.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

PR35 88 &

BT ERMTEER T ENER - AREES
FRRBEPHBIET - B2 T 2R
R - HPWRBREABEMRERR
BEELRERLETE26RE(EED - BA
B)WOAE - AERARLHENEE TEBER
30fAEMEKELHBLAR - BEEBBRT

B+ EfEHI80% A L -

B 3% E R
For the For the
year ended year ended
EANVET WAL 31 March 2017
BE BHE
201853 A31H PIANE=EEI=
LEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETIT

Revenue WA 85,799 87,338
Sale of software systems HE IR 51,746 42,835
Provision of technical services R AR 20,495 25,619
Sale of hardware SHEE AR R 13,558 18,884

Gross profit EF 40,168 39,456

Profit attributable to shareholders B — X MIEE 28R
before one-off items FEMR R T 31,685 30,225

Listing expenses &R 11,157 8,533

Profit attributable to shareholders 1% BR B A ) 16,722 18,004

Earnings per share excluding one-off MR —IRIEIER 2 G AN
items (RMB cents) (Note) (ANR¥5)(B1et) 9.52 9.31

Earnings per share — basic and diluted &A% Z | — B AR K #5%

(RMB cents) (AR¥D) 5.71 6.32

Note:  Earnings per share excluding one-off items was calculated based
on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders before Listing
Expenses (as defined below) and excluding tax effects, if any,
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
issued.

14 Annual Report 2018  OneForce Holdings Limited

Hret - WEB—RMIEE - SRANNFEERER
ARETERCERR TXATEBEMEH
VB IB) 2 EBBRREMEET - BRIA

BRI TR TR -



i

= =il

i

CEO'’s Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

TRRBODEREERENWED

Revenue A

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's MREZE2018F3A31HILFE - NEBKG
revenue by business segments for the year ended 31 March KEIR ST ATFIEIT -

2018:
For the For the
year ended year ended
EARVET(d WONE 31 March 2017
BZE HE
pINEE:2 Y=L 0= 20173 H31H
IEFE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®ET T ARETTT
Sale of software systems HEBHRLS 51,746 42,835
Provision of technical services TR R IT AR 75 20,495 25,619
Sale of hardware SYE AR IR R 13,558 18,884

85,799 87,338

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s revenue REZE2018FE3A31HILEE » REERA
slightly decreased by approximately RMB1,539,000, which is NESR A A R #1,539,0000T  EE R AR
mainly due to the combination of the following: UTREZMNGESE -

(i) Sale of software systems recorded a growth of 0) SHEE I X ERFWAE F—BfF1E

approximately RMB8,911,000, which in turn, was MAR®E48,911,0007T ' EEEHF
attributable to the fact that the Group substantially RRRNEB AN EEEERTK T
completed the Rural Access to Selling and NEHENEEACEEEAEHE
Management Information System Project ({2 EH# A BESER)

EINE B EATEE)) with IMPG;

20185 TwTHEREBERQE 15
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(ii)

(iii)

The decrease in revenue arising from the provision of
technical services by approximately RMB5,124,000
was primarily due to lower revenue generated
from outsourcing services provided to SGCC. The
Group has been providing IT coding and technician
outsourcing services in relation to electric power
exchange to SGCC since December 2014, and
has assisted SGCC principally to complete the
development of Nationwide Unified Electric Power
Market Technology Supporting Platform ({&[E
H—BHMISHRMZETFAIEEB)) in prior years.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
mainly focused on local integration and installation
of such platform in more rural provinces that have
lower volume of electricity consumption. As such,
demands from SGCC for the number of the Group’s
technicians are lower than prior years. The Group has
proactively initiated discussion with SGCC to expand
its service scope from the current electric power
exchange to a more broader areas, subject to Along
Grid’s undertaking, such as electric power despatch
management and system integration; and

Sale of hardware revenue was approximately
RMB5,326,000 lower, which was mainly due to the
fact that the Group completed respective hardware
sales contracts with Xinjiang Guoneng Zhiye Electric
Power Technology Co., Ltd. (¥Ti2EAEE£E HF
KA AR and Tianjin TEDA in prior years; and
the Group invested more time, people and other
resources in expanding customer base and developing
new product lines to boost long-term growth
potential.
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Cost of sales and gross profit margin SHERAZEER R

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's NEZE2018F3A31HILFE » NEBRKE
costs of sales and gross profit margin by business segments THDEBRSH E R AR E R RFBNT
for the year ended 31 March 2018:

For the For the
year ended year ended
EXRET( WAk 31 March 2017
B= =
pINEEEY=ER =M 201793 5318
IEFEE FE
Cost of Sales $5& R4
(RMB’000 A R¥EF7T)

Sale of software systems HEBHRS 24,087 17,806
Provision of technical services R IR 10,961 14,243
Sale of hardware SYE AR IR R 10,583 15,833
45,631 47,882

Cost of Sales S5 7 (%)
Sale of software systems HERM RS 53.5% 58.4%
Provision of technical services IR IR 46.5% 44.4%
Sale of hardware SHE 4RI R AR 21.9% 16.2%
46.8% 45.2%

For the year ended 31 March 2018, cost of sales slightly REZE2018FE3HA31HILFE » ANEFEEE
decreased by approximately RMB2,251,000, which was in BRSNS T RE A REE492,251,0007T + B4

line with revenue pattern. Meanwhile, the Group's overall HEAREEREEEWABBIBEEE - B
gross profit margin increased from approximately 45.2% to B - NEEREEFRALI5.2%IEE A4
approximately 46.8%, which was mainly attributable to: 46.8% - EEF EBHPNINTEE :

(i) revenue arising from provision of technical services to 0) KARAANSEEEHEBURKESR

IMPG and Tianjin TEDA, which traditionally has higher ER MR M AL B AL ES BT

gross profit margin than that to SGCC, took a larger 125 MEZBEKBTFHEREER

proportion of total revenue; and TRRHORMIRS WAL A S
EFR: R

201853 FTHERERART 17



R e iy o

CEO’s Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
THABEEREEENRED N

(ii)

the Group extended its hardware product catalogue
and added the new Macro Rear-Projector (“MR
Projector”) and related software systems. MR
Projector is featured withbig screen, ultra-thinness,
high contrast and soft brightness, and has broad
applications in energy and various sectors, including
but not limited to dynamic monitoring and
management of business operation. The underlying
technology of MR Projector is unique in the market
and the Group has developed a software system to
integrate with the MR Projector and form a syndicate
solution specifically for electric power companies.
As such, the Group expects to realise higher profit
margin from the MR Project business going forward.

Administrative and other operating expenses

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s
administrative and other operating expenses incurred for the
year ended 31 March 2018:

(i)

REATEF R PIFAHEE NS
R REUR AR B R 5 B 4 BR A
(TREE LR AR &
B MEBKRKRMEARER B
M BHLE  BERNMERH &
BERMETEERRZMNERAS
BREMRR - LELLEHNEE
ERIEER - ZRMEMS LAES
FUEBAREREBEMFAET —EE
REBHERRAITIE—EEKBERT
& HEENEEER - Bl - A&
B RSB RRRIBAAESSS
HREREOFEE o

THRRHEMEEER

REZE2018F3A31HILFE - REBITH
MEMEEBRNFFOT

Labour costs AT
R&D expenses HEE
Others Hith

For the year ended 31 March 2018, administrative and
other operating expenses amounted to approximately
RMB10,877,000, which was approximately RMB1,297,000
higher than that of the previous year. The increase was
mainly attributable to annual upward salary adjustment
to our employees, and the Group incurred more in R&D
expenses in the current financial year.
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For the For the

year ended year ended
EANVET WDHAE 31 March 2017
BE HE
201838310 PANNEENGEILE!
LLFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
5,598 3,771

1,145 822

4,134 4,987

10,877 9,580

REZE2018F3A31HILFE - AEBEHEE
TEREMEEER AR 10,877,000
TR E—FBEFEEMNAREY
1,297,0007T ° ZIBMEBZEHNRAEEE
TTE EFMPFEEEILINFTE o
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Listing expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group incurred one-
off expenses in relation to the Listing (“Listing Expenses”) of
approximately RMB11,157,000, which was approximately
RMB2,624,000 higher than that in the previous year. The
higher Listing Expenses was mainly due to the fact that the
global offering of the shares of the Company and the Listing
Date were close to the Lunar New Year, and more overtime
charges and expenses were incurred by relevant professional
parties.

Intangible assets

As an innovation driven company, the Group placed more
efforts and resources in its R&D activities and invested
approximately RMB15,725,000 in total (including capitalised
and those charged in profit and loss accounts, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Research and development
expenditures” as further explained below) for the current
financial year (year ended 31 March 2017: RMB4,350,000).
As such, the carrying amount of intangible assets was
approximately RMB18,153,000 as of 31 March 2018 (31
March 2017: RMB5,962,000). In particular:

(i) In response to and leverage the opportunities brought
by the New Reform in China’s electric power industry,
the Group, based on its dedicated investments and
reserves in “cloud computing”, “big data” and
“mobile internet” and other new and advanced
technologies, successfully launched OneForce Cloud
in November 2017. The Group’s total capitalised
investment in developing OneForce Cloud amounted
to approximately RMB7,726,000 for the year ended
31 March 2018 (please refer to the paragraph headed
"Business review” for further details); and

(ii) The Group was accredited a total of 37 computer
software copyrights as of the date of this report (31
March 2017: 27 computer software copyrights).

LtHEA

REE2018F3A3MHILFE - NEFEEE
HEmREN—RAEER(T ETERDAR
#£4911,157,0007T » WE_E—BFFEEE I8 hn
AR ¥E#)2,624,0007C « I EREMN - =
EERAHAANRRIREERETTER LK EMA
BB RERT - SHEERPNEETR
RIS B AR ER -

BILEE

EB—REFNEEA MM - AEE SR
HEEE—ZIATHHBEEMTAD
BHEER - HERERBE(BIEE ML
DANGTAEBIBRED - FFR T X e
EEIS | —&1) EE AR 415,725,000
T(EZE2017F3A31BILEE - AR
#74,350,0007T) ° At 720184 3 A 31
H AEEEFEERAFEAARELY
18,153,000 T (2017438318 : ARKY
5,962,0007T) ° £ Rl

(i) ZEENEHINERER - TUEHE
AR - AREEE NS FIRIE
EFE ] [ REUE] - [BEEEH
LT E A BRI AL
2 R2017F 1M AERER TITH
ERBRRERBEFS - HE2018
FIANBLEFE  mEEAMET
NEFEERANEARA AT HA
s AREX7,726,0007T (FEARE A R,
[¥7EBIRE]—&) AR

(i) HEARER  AEEHLBATERK
M EERE37I8 (201793 4318 -
2778) °

2018F ¥ TmHERERARE 19




CEO’s Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

THARODEREEEBIWED

Trade and bill receivables

As of 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of trade and bill
receivables amounted to approximately RMB91,132,000
(31 March 2017: RMB69,656,000). The increase was mainly
due to the timing of invoicing to customers and the Group's
credit policy and the creditability of its customers were stable
as compared with prior years. As of the date of this report,
the Group has collected approximately RMB22,999,000,
representing approximately 25.2% of the balance as at 31
March 2018.

Inventories

As of 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately RMB&,036,000 (31 March 2017:
RMB6,577,000). The increase was in line with the
development of the Group’s business and the number of its
pipeline projects.

Research and development expenditure
The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s

capitalised/R&D expenditure incurred for the year ended 31
March 2018:

B2 BYRR KR EREE

R2018F3A31H  AEEE ZEKER
NMERERFEAARKL91,132,0007T
(201793 A31H : AR %769,656,000
JL) > BZEYERA R EWEIERIE I - +
EEHNMAEFHEEZRRITE - BRit
ZH AEENERERAREFNE SR
MBI BT FEIREESRNES - HERR
“£H AEEBWEE SRR EKRE
B4 AR ®22,999,0007T * 4)452018F3 A
31HERRERY25.2%

75

MR2018F3A31H - AEEGFEFBEAAR
5 498,036,0007C (201793 A31H « AR
6,577,0007T) - FEMRERIEIN - TEEH
RASEARREBERMER T REZHOEF
HITIEE -

RS
REZE2018F3A3MHILFE - REBBE

A A, ST BB ROT R X S
o

WE
AR SH
HAREARSE

R&D expenditure
Capitalised
Charged to profit and loss accounts
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year ended year ended
EANVET( L WONEE 31 March 2017
BE =

201853 A31H PlANEEZEIN=
LEFE IFEFE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
14,580 3,528

1,145 822

15,725 4,350




" S A T L

Wn
ﬂﬁ;’ T T

_EHL S

=

R T T T - cahe = 4

CEO's Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

THRBROEREERENWED

As an technology and innovation driven company, the Group
has been consistently investing in R&D activities. For the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s continued to place even
more efforts in R&D, which were exhibited as the following:

() the successful development and commercial launch
of OneForce Cloud in the fourth quarter of 2017; and

(i) the accreditation of 10 more computer software
copyrights as of the date of this report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s operation
and capital requirements were financed principally through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating
activities and proceeds from the Listing. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had net current assets of RMB172,235,000
(31 March 2017: RMB103,546,000), including bank
balances and cash of RMB87,409,000 (31 March 2017:
RMB35,411,000). The Group's current ratio (as calculated
by current assets divided by current liabilities) increased from
6.51 times as at 31 March 2017 to 7.89 times as at 31 March
2018. Gearing ratio is calculated by net debt divided by total
capital as at the end of the year. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including bank borrowings and finance
lease payables, if any) less cash and bank balances, while
total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net debt,
where applicable. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March
2018 was nil (31 March 2017: nil). The improvement in
liquidity position was mainly attributable to the increase in
working capital level from the net proceeds received from
the Listing.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial
risks: (i) market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), (ii) credit risk;
(iii) liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group'’s financial performance.

EB—IITEAIFRE M AT - B FIRED
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group operates mainly in the PRC. Entities within the
Group are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to HK$
and RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

The management of the Company has set up a policy
to require the group companies to manage their foreign
exchange risk against their functional currencies. The group
companies do not adopt formal hedge accounting policy. It
manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movements of foreign currency rates and will consider to
enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce the
exposure should the need arises.

CASH FLOW AND FAIR VALUE INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings and/or interest-bearing borrowings and was
exposed to interest rate risk (31 March 2017: none).

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposited at banks, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies.

The management of the Company makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether there
are any disputes with the debtors. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the management is
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made in the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2018, 68.57% (31 March 2017: 60.72%)
of the trade receivable were due from the Group’s largest
customer and 97.34% (31 March 2017: 97.73%) were due
from the five largest customers determined on the same
basis.
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CEO's Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities
of the Group. Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group's debt financing plans, covenant compliance and, if
applicable, external regulatory or legal requirements — for
example, currency restrictions.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources
including orderly realisation of short-term financial assets
and receivables; and long-term financing including long-term
borrowings, if any. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances, committed
credit lines available and interest-bearing borrowings which
enable the Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

COMMITMENTS

The Group’s contract commitments mainly include minimum
lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of rented premises amounted to RMB3,902,000 (31
March 2017: RMB1,676,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company's shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. There has
been no change in the capital structure of the Group since
then. The share capital of the Company only comprises
ordinary shares.

As at 31 March 2018, the Company had 381,072,000 shares
in issue.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not hold any significant
investments (31 March 2017: none).
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Prior to the Listing, the Group completed the Reorganisation,
details of which are set out in the prospectus dated 12
February 2018 (“Prospectus”). Subsequent to the completion
of the Reorganisation and up to the date of this annual
report, the Group did not have any acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in the Prospectus or otherwise in
this annual report, the Group currently has no other plan for
material investments and capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have material contingent liabilities as at
31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: none).

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2018, there had been no
material change in the Group’s funding and treasury policies.
The Group has a sufficient level of cash and banking facilities
for the conduct of its trade in the normal course of business.

The management of the Company closely reviews trade
receivable balances and any overdue balances on an
ongoing basis and only trade with creditworthy parties. The
management of the Company closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group'’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements to manage liquidity risk.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, no assets have been charged as
security for bank borrowings of the Group (31 March 2017:
none).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no property, plant and
equipment that was held under finance leases (31 March
2017: none).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The total number of employees was 190 as at 31 March
2018 (31 March 2017: 213). The Group’'s employee benefit
expenses mainly included salaries, overtime payment and
discretionary bonus, share options, other staff benefits and
contributions to retirement schemes. For the year ended 31
March 2018, the Group’s total employee benefit expenses
(including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to RMB29.6
million (2017: RMB28.4 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to the
qualification, experience and work performance, whereas the
payment of discretionary bonus is generally subject to work
performance, the financial performance of the Group in that
particular year and general market conditions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and that the risks of non-compliance
with such requirements. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, and having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group has complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong in
all material respects during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Group also complies with the requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO") for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance in all
material respects.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group
continually seeks to identify and manage environmental
impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable
assets of the Group. The Group strictly complies with the
labour laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong and
regularly reviews the existing staff benefits for improvement.

The Group provides good quality services to customers and
maintains a good relationship with them. The Group is able
to establish trust and long-standing business relationship
with its major customers.

The Group also maintains effective communication and
develops long term and stable relationships with suppliers.
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there was no
material dispute nor disagreement between the Group and
its suppliers.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been successfully listed on the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. The actual net proceeds
from the Listing, after deducting the listing-related expenses,
were HK$50.78 million (the “Actual Net Proceeds”). The
table below sets out an adjusted allocation as adjusted in
the same manner and same proportions as shown in the
Prospectus and the actual use of the Actual Net Proceeds as
at 31 March 2018.

FERERR

AATRGHEKH E ABER AT E
o &k EARBERAS % - TR ERRAT
BRIEFEEAS0.78BEB T BEEMER
HFR]) o TRHEFIEBRERBEFEES
2018F3A31BMKERESR (LB ER
FTREAER 5 N AR R L BIEAR ) RER
B

The Actual Incurred at  Balance as at
Net Proceeds 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Use of proceeds as HBRERE BB 20184 201845
set out in the Prospectus BEEESHR REFE 3A31HCHEAR 3A31AZ#&t
HK$'million HK$ million HK$ million
BEATT BEATT BEAT
Enhance our R&D capabilities  HNs&H FIRI 24 17.77 17.77 -
Expand our customer base BEARMNE P AR 10.16 - 10.16
Expand our product/service BErmMREEN
offerings B IRiEERE 10.16 - 10.16
Acquire or invest in companies {EWEES IR E N R
with proprietary know-how & & 5 BRI E 1+
or inventions of software SE MR E A BT
or products in relation to Bt S O/NE]
electric power selling and
management 7.61 - 7.61
Replenish our working capital #F&ZEE S 5.08 5.08 -
50.78 22.85 27.93
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES TERREREDY

Opportunity always side with challenge, at the meantime
of strengthening our technological expertise and marketing
position, the Group is facing the following main operational
risk factors:

HWBEKBYT  ETEMRASRNE
N ZETISHAR R - AEE b EERD
TEERZRRE
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Reliance on major customers

Our revenue was mainly derived from the provision of
Application Solutions and Technical Services to IMPG
and SGCC. For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue
attributable to our five largest customers represented over
90% of our total revenue. Even though the Group has been
proactively approaching new customers in, electric power
retailing, public utilities and electric power generation
sectors, the exploration of new markets and expansion of
customer base require heavy initial investments in time and
resources and is uncertain in nature. As such, the Group
is like to retain a notable concentration in customer base
in the forthcoming few years. If IMPG and/or SGCC adjust
their respective investment plan and procurement model in
the business sector the Group operates, our product and/
or service offerings cannot satisfy customers’ demands and
requirements, which would lead to decrease in procurement
of the Group’s products and/or services from our customers,
or the Group’s R&D projects may not be commercialised, and
our results of operation and profitability may be adversely
affected.

In this respect, the Group is going to proactively penetrate
in the newly engaged electric power retailing sector and
increase its percentage of composition in our revenue profile.
Meanwhile, be leveraging new technology development in
cloud computing, big data and mobile internet, the Group is
also determined to develop new market and business in the
smart energy sector.
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Seasonality of our business

The Group’s major customers are electric power grid
companies featured with top-down management structure.
Accordingly, their internal procedures for investment approval
are centrally planed and managed. In general, electric power
grid companies set up next year’'s investment plan (including
information technology related projects) toward the end of
current year. In the following year, budgeted projects are
implemented (from tendering to project kick-off, impletion
and completion) in batches. Subject to electric power grid
companies’ internal management procedures, the signing of
contracts and completion of project inspection are tend to
be conducted in the fourth quarter each year. Accordingly,
more of our revenue is recognised in the same time period.
As such, our results of operation have exhibits certain
seasonality.

In this respect, the Group will proactively communicate
and cooperate with electric power grid companies, so as to
increase visibility of our business operation. Meanwhile, the
Group will also explore new customers and business areas
for the purpose of smoothing seasonality of our business and
results of operation.

Costs in R&D activities

The Group has been focusing on developing technological
expertise to lead business innovation, and making consistent
investments in R&D activities. By doing this, we have evolving
new product and service offering, which provide sound and
solid ground for the development of the Group. While, our
investments in R&D may not commercialise in short-term and
the economic benefits arising from relevant new products
and/or services may not cover the underlying investments. As
such, the Group's results of operation and profitability may
be adversely affected.

In this respective, the Group will keep abreast of the latest
developments in technology and the industry, so that to keep
our lead in technology development, meanwhile not making
excessive R&D investments. By continuously enhancing our
study in industrial policies and trends in development, the
Group is aiming to increase the success rate of R&D activities
and mitigate the uncertainties and risks associated with
business innovation.
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Impairment of trade receivables

Along with the development of the Group’s business, our
revenue and trade receivables increased accordingly. Our
major customers, electric power grid companies and relevant
enterprises, all have solid financial ground and sound
creditability, which provide reliable basis for the recoverability
of our trade receivables. In addition, there are sound track
records of our customers and no impairment loss of trade
receivables have ever incurred. While, the rise in trade
receivables do have notable impacts on our cash positions
and increase working capital investments. With continuing
development of the Group’s business, the balance of trade
receivables may further increase. If the full amount of our
trade receivables could not be collected in time or at all, the
Group would face the risk of working capital shortage.

In this respect, the Group will keep close monitor of trade
receivable balances and strengthen communication with
customers in relation to settlement, so as to expedite timely
collection of trade receivables,

Retaining of qualified and experienced staff

The Group's success and performance depend to a
significant extent on our high-calibre staff. The increase
in market competition will inevitably make the pursuit to
qualified and experienced staff to be increasingly fierce. If we
lose a significant number of members of our management
and/or technical staff and we cannot make timely and
appropriate replacement, the Group's results of operation
and profitability may be adversely affected.

In this respective, the Group is aiming to provide competitive
salaries, welfare and incentive packages, establishing fare
and competitive promotion system, so that our staff can
enjoy both favourable short-term economic benefits, and
share their long-term career pursuit with the development of
the Group.
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The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests
of the Group as it believes that an effective corporate
governance framework is fundamental to promoting and
safeguarding interests of shareholders and other stakeholders
and enhancing shareholder value. Accordingly, the Company
has adopted and applied corporate governance principles as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and practices
that emphasise a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal controls systems, stringent disclosure practices,
transparency and accountability. It is, in addition, committed
to continuously improving these practices and inculcating an
ethical corporate culture.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

THE BOARD
Corporate strategy

The strategy of the Group is to deliver sustainable returns
with solid financial fundamentals, so as to enhance long-term
total return for shareholders. Please refer to the Chairman’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis for
discussions and analyses of the performance of the Group
and the basis on which the Group generates or preserves
value over the longer term and the basis on which the Group
will execute its strategy for delivering the objective of the
Group.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for the
long-term performance of the Company, is responsible
for directing and guiding the strategic objectives of the
Company and overseeing and monitoring managerial
performance of the business. Directors are charged with the
task of promoting the success of the Company and making
decisions in the best interests of the Company.

The Board, led by the Chairman (executive Director), Mr.
Wang Dongbin, determines and monitors group-wide
strategies and policies, annual budgets and business plans,
evaluates the performance of the Company, and supervises
the management of the Company (“Management”).
Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Group under the leadership of the Chief Executive
Officer.
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Board composition

As at 31 March 2018, the Board comprised five Directors,
including the Chairman, Mr. Wang Dongbin (executive
Director), the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wu Hongyuan,
(executive Director) and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”), namely: Mr. Ng Kong Fat, Mr. Han Bin
and Mr. Wang Peng.

The Board has adopted a policy which recognises the benefits
of a Board that possesses a balance of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the businesses of the Group.

Board appointment has been, and will continue to be, made
based on merit that complements and expands the skills,
experience and expertise of the Board as a whole, taking
into account age, professional experience and qualifications,
cultural and educational background, and any other factors
that the Board might consider relevant and applicable from
time to time towards achieving a diverse Board.

The Board diversity policy is available on the website of the
Company (www.oneforce.com.cn). The Board will review
and monitor from time to time the implementation of the
policy to ensure its effectiveness and application.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 3 to
6 of this report and on the website of the Company. A list
setting out the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Meanwhile, none of the members of the
Board is related to one another.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the INEDs
and considers all of them to be independent having regard
to (i) their annual confirmation on independence as required
under the Listing Rules; (i) the absence of involvement in
the day-to-day management of the Company; and (iii) the
absence of any relationships or circumstances which would
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, the number of
INEDs on the Board meets the one-third requirement under
the Listing Rules.
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Chairman and executive Directors

The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Chief
Executive Officer. Such division of responsibilities reinforces
the independence and accountability of these Directors.

The position of Chairman, held by Mr. Wang Dongbin, is
responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts in the best
interests of the Group and that Board meetings are planned
and conducted effectively. The Chairman is responsible for
setting the agenda for each Board meeting, taking into
account, where appropriate, matters proposed by Directors
and the Company Secretary. With the support of the
executive Director and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
discussed at Board meetings and provided with adequate
and accurate information in a timely manner. The Chairman
promotes a culture of openness and actively encourages
Directors to voice their opinion and be fully engaged in
the affairs of the Board so as to contribute to the effective
functioning of the Board. The Board, under the leadership
of the Chairman, has adopted sound corporate governance
practices and procedures and taken appropriate steps to
promote effective communication and ongoing engagement
with shareholders and other stakeholders.

The position of Chief Executive Officer, held by Mr. Wu
Hongyuan, is responsible for managing the businesses of
the Group, attending to the formulation and successful
implementation of Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all Group operations. Acting
as the principal manager of the businesses of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer attends to developing strategic
operating plans that reflect the long-term objectives and
priorities established by the Board and is directly responsible
for maintaining the operational performance of the
Group. Working with the Chief Financial Officer and the
Management, the Chief Executive Officer presents annual
budgets to the Board for consideration and approval, and
ensures that the Board is fully apprised of the funding
requirements of the businesses of the Group. With the
assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Executive
Officer sees to it that the funding requirements of the
businesses are met and closely monitors the operating
and financial performance of the businesses against plans
and budgets, taking remedial action if necessary. He
maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all
Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
development and issues. He is also responsible for building
and maintaining an effective executive management team to
support him in his role.
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Board process

In accordance with the Articles of Association and the Listing
Rules, the Board will meet regularly, and at least four times
a year with meeting dates scheduled prior to the beginning
of relevant year. Between scheduled meetings, senior
management of the Group provides to Directors, on a regular
basis, quarterly updates and other information with respect
to the performance, and business activities and development
of the Group. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018,
Directors participate in the deliberation and approval of
routine and operational matters of the Company by way of
written resolutions with supporting explanatory materials,
supplemented by additional verbal and/or written information
from the Company Secretary or other executives, if any,
and as and when required. Details of material or notable
transactions of subsidiaries are provided to the Directors as
appropriate. Whenever warranted, additional Board meetings
are held. In addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice at all
times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors and they
are at liberty to propose appropriate matters for inclusion in
Board agendas.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, Directors
receive written notice of the meeting generally about 14 days
in advance and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than three days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
if any, Directors are given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the Articles of Association and
the Listing Rules, a Director would abstain from voting on
resolutions approving any contract, transaction, arrangement
in which he or she or any of his or her close associates is
materially interested and such Director is not counted for
quorum determination purposes.

Upon Listing and up to 31 March 2018, the Board has not
convened any meeting and signed any written resolutions.

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman shall hold
regular meetings with executive Directors and meet with
INEDs annually without the presence of executive Directors.
The INEDs freely provide their independent views to the
Board.
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Any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company, or in the case of an additional
appointment, until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company, and shall be eligible for re-election
at the relevant general meeting. All Directors are subject
to retirement from office by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at annual general meetings at least about once
every three years. A retiring Director is eligible for re-election
and re-election of retiring Directors at general meetings is
dealt with by separate individual resolutions. In addition,
INEDs entered into service contracts for an initial term
ending on 31 March of the year of their appointments which
contracts are automatically renewed for successive 12-month
periods, subject to re-election in accordance with the Articles
of Association.

No Director has a service contract with the Company which
is not terminable by the Company within one year and
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Shareholders may propose a candidate for election as
Director in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
procedures for such proposal are posted on the website of
the Company.

Training and commitment

Upon appointment to the Board, Directors receive a package
of orientation materials on the Group and are provided with
a comprehensive induction to the businesses of the Group by
the Management.

The Company arranges and provides Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD") training such as seminars and relevant
reading materials to Directors to help ensure that they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and
regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its
businesses and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. In
addition, attendance at external forums or briefing sessions
(including delivery of speeches) on the relevant topics also
counts toward CPD training.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with
details of the CPD training undertaken by them from
time to time. Based on the details so provided, the CPD
training undertaken by the Directors as of 31 March 2018 is
summarised as follows:
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EEATRBAARRBESMELFES
EBRREBSNFMAER - BEEERENE
# o BREERNEE2018F3A31 BT
EIERRESBMAOT

Areas
BXHEE
Legal and Corporate Group Business/
Regulatory Governance Directors’ Duties
EEER
EERER hEER EERE
Executive Directors HITES

WANG Dongbin (Chairman) — F 338t ( % /&) v 4 4
WU Hongyuan (CEO) RO (TTECAEEL) v v v

INEDs BYFHTES
NG Kong Fat® Rz v/ v/ v
HAN Bin™ B2 v v v
WANG Peng™ Tie v v v

Note 1: appointed on 5 February 2018.

All Directors have confirmed that they have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. In addition,
Directors disclose to the Company in a timely manner their
other commitments, if any, such as directorships in other
public companies and major appointments as well as update
the Company on any subsequent changes.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. In
response to specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code in their
securities transactions during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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Board committees

The Board is supported by three permanent board
committees: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, details of which
are described later in this report. The terms of reference for
these Committees, which have been adopted by the Board,
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Other board committees are established by the
Board as and when warranted to take charge of specific
tasks.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper Board
processes and timely preparation of and dissemination to
Directors comprehensive Board meeting agendas and papers.
Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board Committees
are prepared and maintained by the company secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Board Committees,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by
any Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees are sent to Directors or
Board Committee members as appropriate for comments,
approval and records. Board records are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments of relevance
to the Group and that it takes these developments into
consideration when making decisions for the Group. From
time to time, she organises seminars on specific topics of
importance and interest and disseminates reference materials
to Directors for their information.

The company secretary is also directly responsible for the
compliance of the Group with all obligations of the Listing
Rules and Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-
backs, including the preparation, publication and despatch
of annual reports and interim reports within the time limits
laid down in the Listing Rules, the timely dissemination to
shareholders and the market of information relating to the
Group.
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Furthermore, the company secretary advises the Directors
on connected transactions, notifiable transactions, price-
sensitive/inside information and Directors’ obligation for
disclosure of interests and dealings in securities of the
Company, to ensure that the standards and disclosures
requirements under the Listing Rules and applicable laws,
rules and regulations are complied with and, where required,
reported in the interim and annual reports of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the company secretary is
subject to Board approval. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman, all members of the Board have
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary.
Ms. Yuen Wing Yan Winnie of Tricor Services Limited,
the external service provider, has been appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the affairs of the Group. Its primary contact
persons at the Company are Mr. Wang Dongbin, Chairman
and executive Director of the Company and Mr. Wu
Hongyuan, Chief executive Officer and executive Director of
the Company. Ms. Yuen Wing Yan Winnie confirms that she
has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking
no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training
during the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner, within three months and two months
respectively of the year end and the half-year end.

The responsibility of Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. This should be read in
conjunction with but distinguished from, the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 76 to 86 which acknowledges the
reporting responsibility of the auditor of the Group.

Annual report and financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of this annual report and financial statements of
the Company, ensuring that the financial statements give a
true and fair presentation in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the applicable accounting
standards.
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Accounting policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the accounting
policies of the Group.

Safeguarding assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

Going concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the
view that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who possess
the relevant business and financial management experience
and skills to understand financial statements and contribute
to the financial governance, internal controls and risk
management of the Company. It is chaired by Mr. Ng Kong
Fat with Mr. Han Bin and Mr. Wang Peng as members.

Upon Listing and up to 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee
has not convened any meeting.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit
Committee discharged the duties and responsibilities under
its terms of reference and the CG Code.
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At an Audit Committee meeting held on 22 June 2018, the
Audit Committee members reviewed (i) the financial results
and consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2018; (ii) financial reporting and
compliance procedures; (iii) report on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes; and
(iv) the re-appointment of the external auditors. The Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors without the
presence of executive Directors to discuss financial reporting
issues at the meeting.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required
to oversee the relationship between the Company and its
external auditor, review the preliminary interim and annual
results, and interim and annual financial statements of the
Group, develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance including compliance with
statutory and Listing Rules requirements, review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the activities of internal audit,
engage independent legal and other advisers and conduct
investigations as it determines to be necessary.

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high degree of transparency, probity and accountability.
In line with this commitment, the Company expects and
encourages employees of the Group and those who
deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors
and debtors) to report to the Company any suspected
impropriety, misconduct or malpractice concerning the
Group. In this regard, the Company has adopted the
Procedures for Reporting Possible Improprieties in Matters of
Financial Reporting, Internal Control or Other Matters, which
is posted on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee meets with the Chief Financial Officer
and the Management from time to time for purposes of
reviewing the interim and final results, the interim and annual
reports, and other financial, internal control, corporate
governance and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations
of Management, the internal and external auditors of
the Group, with a view to ensuring that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance
with IFRS and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). It also meets at least two times a year with the
external auditor of the Group, KPMG, to consider the reports
of KPMG on the scope, strategy, progress and outcome of
its independent review of the interim financial report and
annual audit of the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Audit Committee holds regular private meetings
with the external auditor, the Chief Financial Officer and
internal auditor separately without the presence of executive
Directors.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in maintaining
effective risk management and internal control systems.
It reviews the process by which the Group evaluates its
control environment and risk assessment process, and the
way in which business and control risks are managed. It
receives and considers the presentations of Management
in relation to the reviews on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
and adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions of the Group, as well as their training programmes
and budgets. In addition, the Audit Committee reviews in
conjunction with the Group'’s internal auditor the work plans
for its audits together with its resource requirements and
considers the internal audit reports to the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems in the business operations of the Group. Further,
it receives the reports from the Company Secretary on the
material litigation proceedings, if any, and compliance status
of the Group on regulatory requirements. These reviews and
reports are taken into consideration by the Audit Committee
when it makes its recommendation to the Board for approval
of the consolidated financial statements for the year.

External auditor

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
audit process. Each year, the Audit Committee receives a
letter from the external auditor confirming its independence
and objectivity. It holds meetings with representatives of
the external auditor to consider the scope of its audit,
approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit
Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The policy of the Group regarding the engagement of its
external auditor for the various services listed below is as
follows:

. Audit services — include audit services provided
in connection with the audit of the consolidated
financial statements. All such services are to be
provided by the external auditor.
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. Audit related services — include services that would

normally be provided by an external auditor but
not generally included in audit fees, for example,
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or processes,
and issuance of special audit reports for tax or other
purposes. The external auditor is to be invited to
undertake those services that must be undertaken, or
is otherwise best placed, to undertake in its capacity as
auditor.

o Taxation related services — include all tax compliance
and tax planning services, except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group engages the services of the external auditor
where it is best suited. All other significant taxation
related work is undertaken by other parties as
appropriate.

° Other services — include, for example, financial due
diligence, review of actuarial reports and calculations,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations. The external
auditor is also permitted to assist Management
and the internal auditor with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These
services are subject to specific approval by the Audit
Committee.

o General consulting services — the external auditor
is not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the total fees to KPMG

amounted to approximately RMB2,567,000 and are all for
audit services.
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RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND LEGAL
& REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

Role of the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the systems of risk
management, internal control and legal and regulatory
compliance of the Group.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to inculcate
risk awareness across the business operations of the Group
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent
of risks that the Company is willing to accept in pursuit
of the strategic and business objectives of the Group. It
also reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the systems
of risk management and internal control on an ongoing
basis. Reporting and review processes include review by the
executive Directors and the Board and approval of detailed
operational and financial reports, budgets and plans provided
by management of the business operations, review by the
Board of actual results against budgets, review by the Audit
Committee of the ongoing work of internal audit and risk
management functions, as well as regular business reviews
by the executive Directors and the executive management
team.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee regularly
reviews the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on
an ongoing basis. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the
Company has complied throughout the year with all code
provisions of the CG Code

Whilst these procedures are designed to identify and
manage risks that could adversely impact the achievement
of the business objectives of the Group, they do not provide
absolute assurance against material mis-statement, errors,
losses, fraud or non-compliance.
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Risk management

Based on the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission) model, the
Company establishes its Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework to support the delivery of the Group’s
business and strategic objectives. The framework facilitates a
systematic approach in identifying, assessing and managing
risks within the Group, be they of strategic, financial,
operational or compliance nature.

The Group’s risk management is a continuous process
integrated seamlessly into the day-to-day activities at
all levels of the Group companies. There is ongoing
communication between the executive management of the
Group and the business units on the current and emerging
risks, their plausible impact and mitigation measures so as to
institute additional controls and deploy appropriate insurance
instruments to minimise or transfer the impact of risks to
the Group’s business. In addition, the Group’s Directors
and officers are protected against potential personal
legal liabilities through the Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance.

In terms of formal risk review and reporting, the Company
adopts a “top-down and bottom-up” approach, involving
input from each major business unit as well as discussions
and reviews by the executive Directors. More specifically,
on a quarterly basis, each major business unit is responsible
for formally identifying the significant risks their business
faces, measuring them against a defined set of criteria, and
considering likelihood of occurrence and potential impact
to the business, whilst the executive Directors provide input
after taking a holistic assessment of all the significant risks
that the Group faces. Relevant risk information including key
mitigation measures and plans are recorded in a risk register
to facilitate the ongoing review and tracking of progress.

The composite Register, as part of the Risk Management
Report, is submitted to the Audit Committee for review on
a half-yearly basis. The Committee, on behalf of the Board,
reviews the nature and extent of the significant risks facing
the Group, and provides input as and where appropriate so as
to ensure effective risk management in place.
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Pages 27 to 30 of this annual report provide a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties of the Group which
could affect the financial condition or results of operation of
the Group that differ materially from expected or historical
results.

Internal control environment

Executive Directors are appointed to the board of the
operating subsidiary of the Group for monitoring the
company, including attendance at board meetings, review
and approval of budgets and plans, and business strategies
with associated risks identified and setting of key business
performance targets. The executive management team
of each business unit is accountable for the conduct and
performance of their business within the agreed strategies.
The executive Directors monitor the performance and reviews
the risk profiles of the Group companies on an on-going
basis.

The internal control procedures of the Group include a
comprehensive system for reporting information to the
executive management team of each business unit and the
executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by both the executive management teams
and the executive Directors as part of the annual corporate
planning cycle. The annual budget is reviewed on a quarterly
basis to identify major variances and propose rectifications
measures. When setting budgets, management identifies,
evaluates and reports on the likelihood and potential
financial impact of significant business risks.

The executive Directors review monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operating statistics
of each business and holds monthly meetings with senior
management of business operations to review these reports,
business performance against budgets, forecasts, significant
business risk sensitivities and strategies. In addition, the
Chief Financial Officer and finance managers of the business
operations have monthly meetings to review monthly
performance against budget and forecast, and to address
accounting and finance related matters.
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The Group maintains a centralised cash management system
for its subsidiary operations and the finance department
oversees the investment and lending activities of the Group.
Treasury reports on cash and liquid investments, borrowings
and movements thereof are distributed monthly.

The Group has established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. Operating expenditures
are subject to overall budget control and are controlled
within each business with approval levels set by reference
to the level of responsibility of each executive and officer.
Capital expenditures are subject to overall control within
the annual budget review and approval process, and more
specific control and approval prior to commitment by the
executive Directors are required for unbudgeted expenditures
and material expenditures within the approved budget.
Quarterly reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also reviewed.

In terms of formal review of the internal control system of the
Group, an internal control self-assessment process is in place,
requiring senior management of each major business unit to
review, evaluate and declare the effectiveness of the internal
controls over the operations and devise action plans to
address the issues, if any. These assessment results, together
with the Risk Management Report as mentioned earlier and
the independent assessments by the auditors, form part
of the bases on which the Audit Committee formulate its
opinion on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.
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Legal and regulatory compliance

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are
operated in compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations. The investor relation and compliance department
has the responsibility of safeguarding the legal interests of
the Group. It monitors the day-to-day legal affairs of the
Group, including preparing, reviewing and approving all
legal and corporate secretarial documentation of Group
companies, working in conjunction with finance, corporate
secretarial and business unit personnel on the review and
co-ordination process, and advising the Management of
legal and commercial issues of concern. In addition, the
investor relation and compliance department is responsible
for overseeing regulatory compliance matters of all Group
companies. It analyses and monitors the regulatory
frameworks within which the Group operates, including
reviewing applicable laws and regulations and preparing
and submitting response or filings with relevant regulatory
and/or government authorities on regulatory issues and
consultations. In addition, the department prepares and
updates internal policies and conducts tailor-made training
sessions where necessary so as to strengthen the internal
controls and compliance procedures of the Group.

The investor relation and compliance department reports
to the Board on all material legal, regulatory and corporate
secretarial matters and it proposes to the Board for the
engagement of external legal advisors, ensuring the requisite
professional standards are adhered to as well as the most
cost effective services are rendered. Further, investor relation
and compliance department organises and holds continuing
education seminars/conferences on legal and regulatory
matters of relevance to the Group for Directors and the
Management.

On the listed company level, the Group is subject to the
Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Buy-backs, the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the SFO. The investor relation and compliance
department is vigilant with the legal requirements under
these statutes, rules and regulations.
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Code of ethics and handling of inside information

The Group places utmost importance on the ethical, personal
and professional standards of the Directors and employees
of the Group. In addition to the various policies adopted
and implemented by the Group imposing requirements
on Directors and employees to conduct themselves in
compliance with applicable laws, rule and regulations,
every employee is required to undertake to adhere to
the Code of Ethics, and is expected to meet the highest
standards of behaviour including avoiding conflict of interest,
discrimination or harassment and bribery and corruption.
Employees are required to report any non-compliance with
the Code of Ethics to the Management.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating
inside information in compliance with the SFO, additional
procedures, including

o pre-clearance on dealing in the securities of the
Company by designated members of Management,

o notification of regular blackout period and securities
dealing restrictions to relevant Directors and
employees, and

o identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information to stated purpose and
on a need-to-know basis,

have also been implemented by the Group to guard against
possible mishandling of inside information within the Group.
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Internal audit

The internal auditor, reporting directly to the Audit
Committee, provides independent assurance as to the
existence and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal controls systems in the business operations of the
Group. By applying risk assessment methodology and taking
into account the dynamics of the activities of the Group,
internal audit devises its annual audit plan which is reviewed
by the Audit Committee, and continually reassessed during
the year to ensure that adequate resources are deployed
and the objectives of the plan are met. Internal audit is
responsible for assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, including reviewing the
continuing connected transactions of the Company and
whether adequate internal control procedures are in place to
monitor such transactions, formulating an impartial opinion
on the systems, and reporting its findings to the Audit
Committee, the executive Directors and the Management
concerned as well as following up on the issues to ensure
that they are satisfactorily resolved. In addition, internal audit
maintains a regular dialogue with the external auditor so that
the parties are aware of the significant factors which may
affect their respective scope of work.

Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of work performed
by internal audit includes financial, IT, operations, and
regulatory compliance reviews, recurring and surprise audits,
fraud investigations, as well as productivity efficiency reviews.

Reports from the external auditor on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters are presented to the
internal auditor and, as appropriate, to the Chief Financial
Officer. These reports are reviewed and appropriate actions
are taken.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 covering all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and is satisfied that
such systems are effective and adequate. In addition, it has
reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting function of the Group,
and their training programmes and budget.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members
with expertise in management and personnel emoluments.
The Committee is chaired by Mr. Han Bin, with Mr. Wang
Dongbin, and Mr. Ng Kong Fat as members. The composition
of the Remuneration Committee meets the requirements
of chairmanship and independence under the Listing Rules.
The Committee meets towards the end of each year to
determine the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management of the Group.

Remuneration matters are also considered and approved
by way of written resolutions and where warranted, at
additional meetings.

Upon Listing and up to 31 March 2018, the Remuneration
Committed has not convened any meeting.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
to assist the Board in achieving its objective of attracting,
retaining and motivating employees of the highest calibre
and experience needed to shape and execute strategy of
the Group. It assists the Group in the administration of a
fair and transparent procedure for setting remuneration
policies for all Directors and senior management of the
Group. The responsibility for reviewing and determining the
remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior
management of the Group is delegated to the Remuneration
Committee.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
background information on market data (including economic
indicators, statistics and the Remuneration Bulletin),
the business activities and human resources issues, and
headcount and staff costs of the Group. It also reviewed and
approved the 2018 director’s fees for executive Directors and
made recommendation to the Board on the directors’ fees for
INEDs. Prior to the end of the year, the Committee reviewed
and approved the year end bonus and remuneration package
of the executive Directors and senior executives of the Group
for the coming year. The executive Director do not participate
in the determination of his own remuneration.
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Remuneration policy

The remuneration of Directors and senior management of
the Group is determined with reference to their expertise and
experience in the industry, the performance and profitability
of the Group as well as remuneration benchmarks from
other comparative companies and prevailing market
conditions. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group and the individual’s performance.

Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration

Details of emoluments paid to each Director for the year
ended 31 March 2018 are set out below:

Basic salaries,

Director's  allowances
fees and BIK
Exge

Estie RHRENAE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL  ARETI

I BOR

ERESAEEABNFHRRREETE
BERNER AREARGHRRANEF - A
RS2EHMALL RRNFHIHEELE FIH S
BRETE - EFHB T 2RI AEE K E
ARBMEERIEALZHE -

ESHSREEASEHMH

REZE2018F3A3NBIFEINFRES
MBS BT -

Provident Inducement or
fund compensation Total
Bonuses Contributions fees  Emoluments

AL DEEHR HEARE El kS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Executive Directors ~ H{TE%E

WANG, Dongbin THRE 16 404 23 47 - 490
WU, Hongyuan R 16 456 2 55 - 559
INEDs BUFHTES
NG, Kong Fat R 16 - - - - 16
HAN, Bin 5317 16 - - - - 16
WANG, Peng T 16 - - - - 16
Total 5] 80 860 55 102 - 1,097
The remuneration to the members of senior management by REZE2018F3A31HILFEE » 2R EEA
bands for the year ended 31 March 2018 is set out below: B EMHINEEEIIAT -
Number of
Individuals
Remuneration Bands i & &5 E A
HK$1 to HK$ 1,000,000 178702 1,000,000/ 7T 3

201853k THERERAT 51



Corporate Governance Report

TEERERE

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5 of the
CG Code on 5 February 2018. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Wang Dongbin,
Mr. Han Bin and Mr. Wang Peng. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. Wang Dongbin.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii)
assessing the independence of the INEDs; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

Upon Listing and up to 31 March 2018, the Nomination
Committee has not convened any meeting. At a Nomination
Committee meeting held on 22 June 2018, the Nomination
Committee members (i) reviewed and considered that
the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board
are appropriate; (ii) assessed the independence of INEDs;
(iii) recommended the re-appointments of Directors, and
(iv) recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for
approval.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board
composition by considering the benefits of all aspects of
diversity, including but not limited to those described under
the heading of Board Composition in this annual report. The
Board diversity policy, which is available on the website of
the Company (www.oneforce.com.cn), shall be reviewed
by the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Founding Shareholders gave a non-competition
undertaking in favour of the Company (the “Non-competition
Undertaking”). Each of the Founding Shareholders has
undertaken under the Non-competition Undertaking that it/
he shall provide to the Company and the Directors from time
to time (including the INEDs) with all information necessary
for the annual review by the INEDs with regard to compliance
of the terms of the Non-competition Undertaking by the
Founding Shareholders and the enforcement of the Non-
competition Undertaking. Each of the Founding Shareholders
has confirmed compliance with the terms of the Non-
competition Undertaking and that during the year review,
there was no matter which required to be deliberated by the
Board in relation to the compliance and enforcement of the
Non-competition Undertaking. The Board comprising all the
INEDs is of the view that such Founding Shareholders have
been in compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking
in favour of the Company.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communication with the investment community throughout
the year. The Group is committed to enhancing investor
engagement and communications. Through the Chief
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Investor
Relations Department and the Corporate Secretarial team,
the Group responds to requests for information and queries
from the investment community including shareholders,
analysts and the media through regular briefing meetings,
announcements, conference calls and presentations. A policy
on shareholders’ communication, which is available on the
website of the Company, has been adopted and is subject
to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information on the Group to shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. The Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company are published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Moreover, additional
information on the Group is available to shareholders and
stakeholders through the Investor Relations page on the
website of the Company.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings
of the Company. Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of
Association, any shareholder holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company has statutory
rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and put
forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders,
by sending the Board or the Company Secretary at the
principal place of business a written request for such general
meetings, signed by the shareholders concerned together
with the proposed agenda items and such meeting shall be
held within two months of the deposit of such requisition.

All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided
on a poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary
and scrutinised by the Hong Kong Share Registrar of the
Company. The results of the poll are published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. In
addition, regular updated financial, business and other
information on the Group is made available on the website
of the Company for shareholders and stakeholders.
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Upon Listing and up to 31 March 2018, the Company has
not convened any general meeting.

During the year under review, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to
date version of the Company’s Articles of Association is
also available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Other corporate information relating to the Company is set
out in the "Information for Shareholders” section of this
annual report. This includes, among others, dates for key
corporate events for 2019.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts
to promote transparency and foster investor relationship.
Comments and suggestions to the Board or the Company
are welcome and can be addressed to the Investor Relations
Manager or the Company Secretary by mail to

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

or by e-mail at
investors_media@oneforce.com.cn

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability
of its businesses and the communities in which it
conducts business. It has adopted a proactive approach to
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") responsibility
and has established a working group comprising
representatives from key departments of the Company to
promote the ESG initiatives and activities of the Group and
continually enhance the Group's ESG efforts. The ESG Report
of the Group is set out on pages 55 to 63 of this annual
report.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company confirms that the deed of non-competition of
each of Smart East, Union Sino, Main Wealth, Long Eagle,
Mr. Wang Dongbin, Mr. Wu Zhanjiang, Mr. Li Kangying and
Mr. Cao Wei, details of which were set out in the Prospectus,
has been fully complied with and enforced since the Listing
Date and up to 31 March 2018. The Board also confirms
that there are no other matters in relation to the aforesaid
undertaking which should be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders and the potential investors of the Group.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report
provides an annual update of sustainability performance
in respect of the Software Systems, Technical Services and
System Integration business of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2018. It has been updated to reflect the interest
of various stakeholders. Additional material quantitative
data, detailed ESG requirement as well as policies and
programmes have been included to illustrate the main
initiatives implemented by the Group. This report is prepared
in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing
Rules, ESG Reporting Guide, issued by the Stock Exchange in
2015 and should be read in conjunction with the Corporate
Governance Report section of this annual report.

Approach to ESG strategy and reporting

The approach to ESG seeks for alignment with the long-
term strategic development of the Group and enhancement
of shareholder value. Key issues are identified, prioritised
and addressed in a way that demonstrates transparency and
accountability.

As one of the leading participants in PRC's electric power
selling and management systems market, the Group
acknowledges the importance of sound ESG practices in its
daily operations. The Board and the senior management
provide strategic direction, establish sustainability policy
and objectives, oversee corporate governance matters and
monitor progress.

All departments formulate and translate policy into action,
while facilitating exchange of best practices throughout
group companies. They build and incorporate such initiatives
into operations and processes. They also collect and
analyse data, evaluate performance and report major issues
periodically.
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Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment

The Group maintains on-going dialogue with key
stakeholders, including employees, shareholders, customers,
suppliers, local communities, professional institutions, non-
government organisations and authorities. The Group
regularly collects views from its stakeholders through a
variety of channels, such as meetings, and workshops.

ESG compliance and how the Group benefits the community
are among stakeholders’ key interests. Important aspects
vary and range from sourcing practices to environmental
emissions to employment and operating practices, as well
as community involvement. Material aspects identified are
reviewed periodically and the Board is updated as and when
appropriate.

The six sections set out in this report summarise the Group's
commitments to its employees, customers and supply chain,
as well as to anti-corruption, the environment and service
to the community. Key initiatives and activities have been
included in each section to demonstrate and highlight the
efforts in enhancing long-term value for stakeholders.
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COMMITMENT TO OUR EMPLOYEES
Recruiting, engaging and retaining talent

Employees represent a precious asset, and career
opportunities are made available to loyal and industrious
staff members as the Group expands.

As of 31 March 2018, the Group employed 190 full-time
staff members and they were all Chinese citizens from
mainland China. The Group is committed to complying
with the employment associated guidelines and regulations,
including laws prohibiting child and forced labour. Every
aspect of employment is subject to a stringent internal review
process involving a well-defined monitoring procedure to
verify a candidate’s personal information so as to prevent
misrepresentation and any form of forced labour. An
employment contract is drafted with easily-understood terms
and conditions, and each individual is well briefed before
being employed. The code of ethics of the Group requires
staff to comply with applicable government and regulatory
laws, rules, codes and regulations.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies
and runs programmes to ensure employees are hired,
promoted and assigned based on their skill and ability.
The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
positive, diverse, respectful and safe working environment,
without discrimination or harassment. The selection process
affords equal opportunities to all persons subscribing to
the commitment to excellence and is carried out regardless
of gender or religious belief. This non-discrimination policy
continues throughout a staff member’s career and applies
to all employment matters including placement, transfer,
promotion and compensation.
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Investing in training and development

Heavy emphasis on career development manifests itself as a
variety of workshops and on-the-job training. Comprehensive
and structured programmes are designed to familiarise new
staff members with the industry. The Group also extends
tailored programmes to certain educational institutions
to help identify potential employment candidates and
allow those interested to find out more about a career
development path.

In November 2012, the Group entered into a cooperation
framework agreement with North China Electric Power
University (“CEPU") and has been cooperating with CEPU to
perform research and development activities in the electric
power industry. Currently, the Group’s cooperation with
CEPU is mainly focusing on demand side management, cloud
computing in smart energy industry and smart charging
management software, etc..

Educational support is available to employees in the form of
job-related courses provided by internal/external institutions.
Employees are encouraged to take part in work-life balance
activities and community service. These include employee
outings, sports events and volunteering activities in the
community.

Promoting well-being, health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees and is committed to complying with all applicable
health and safety laws and regulations. Such considerations
are an important element of the design, operation and
maintenance of office facilities and the way our business is
conducted.

Employees are able to access health and safety information
posted on the intranet, which also offers hyperlinks to
external sites. A list of first aid helpers is maintained in
offices, along with information to help employees understand
how to handle health and safety issues.

In February 2018, Along Grid was granted the I1SO18001:
Certificate of Occupational Health and Safety Management
System Certification.
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Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations that has a significant impact relating to
employment and labour practices, or occupational health
and safety during the year. Neither did the Group identify
any incidents relating to hire of child or forced labour.

COMMITMENT TO OUR CUSTOMERS
Building trust through reliability and quality

The Group has built up long-term relationship with each
of the key customers (e.g. IMPG Group, SGCC Group
and Tianjin TEDA), which was primarily attributable to its
consistent emphasis on the quality of products and service
offerings and high customer satisfaction.

Improving customer experience

The Group maintains a comprehensive frontline customer
service network across main geographical areas covered by
business operation of our major customers, namely IMPG
Group and SGCC Group, so that feedback can be collected
and acted upon. The Group treats customer feedback with
due care and in a timely manner. Any customer complaints
are handled efficiently and investigated to identify and
rectify root causes. Records are kept as to how complaints
are handled and whether any improvements resulted, and
measures are in place to review outcomes. The Group
also fosters a culture of continuous improvement by
benchmarking and publishing service performance details
on a regular basis. Service levels are gauged according
to performance pledges, then reviewed by departments
periodically.

Protecting our customers

As an information technology related products and service
provider, the Group values customer data privacy to the
upmost importance and is committed to complying with data
privacy laws and regulations. The Group has developed a
robust system to control collection, as well as access to, and
updating, security and retention of customer data received.
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In April 2018, Along Grid was granted ISO 27001: Certificate
of Information Security Management System Certification,
which demonstrated our effort and achievement in
protecting customer data privacy and security.

Protecting consumers and safeguarding their privacy are top
priorities. The Group distributes guidelines and handbooks,
and issues periodic reminders to customer-facing employees,
while running workshops to emphasise the importance of
protecting personal data.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws or regulations that has a significant
impact concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling or
privacy matters relating to products and services, or methods
of redress during the year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR SUPPLY CHAIN
Fair assessment of suppliers

The Group is committed to upholding relevant laws and
regulations. Purchasing and business partner evaluation
policies and various procedures provide direction and
guidelines on evaluation and engagement when dealing
with major business partners. This encompasses working
relationships with suppliers of goods and services to ensure
business is being conducted only with legally, financially and
technically-sound entities.

The Group adheres to industry best practices and conducts
fair and unbiased tender processes, where applicable, in
dealings with vendors. When selecting vendors and suppliers,
the Group takes factors into account such as quality of
products and services, past performance, financial standing,
capacity assessment and reputation including track records
in handling social and environmental matters. The Group
expects suppliers to observe the same environmental, social,
health and safety and governance considerations when
carrying out their own operating practices. Procurement
teams are trained to apply each and every aspect of these
policies and procedures when assessing suppliers, while
tendering procedures are always communicated carefully to
vendors, where applicable.
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Anti-corruption

An Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy sets out standards
of conduct all employees are required to follow. The Group
has also established procedures for reporting possible
improprieties relating to matters of financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. The aim is to encourage
employees — and those who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) to report any
suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice within the
Group. These procedures aim to provide reporting channels
and guidance, while reassuring “whistle-blowers” they will
be protected against any unfair treatment. Relevant cases
will be followed up independently by internal auditor and
reported to the Audit Committee and senior management.

The Group organises periodic corporate governance seminars
and training on anti-corruption measures and guidelines, as
well as sound operating practices and business ethics.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any of non-compliance with
laws or regulations that has a significant impact concerning
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering during the
year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR ENVIRONMENT
Energy use and carbon emissions

Our office building, IT equipment and infrastructure account
for most of our energy consumption. Environment-protection
policy of the Group details a commitment to minimise the
negative impact of business activities on the environment
and support protection initiatives.

The Group demonstrated a keen sense of minimising energy
consumption by adopting the optimal temperature set-point
of 24°C ~ 26°C for office buildings and facilities.

The Group strived to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions
through enhancing energy efficiency and reducing energy
consumption across operations.

As of 31 March 2018, the Group has equipped with one
electric vehicle in its fleet of total four vehicles. In the next
five years, the Group will gradually upgrade the remaining
vehicles.
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In or around 2016, the Group launched a printer cartridge
recycle programme. Used cartridge were sent for refill or
recycling. So far, the Group has also achieved 100% use of
re-filled cartridge for printing.

As an active participant in the broad information technology
industry, the Group has been keeping abreast of new trends
and development. In particular, the Group encouraged
employees to take part in the Ant Forest initiative to reduce
carbon emission through mobile APP (Ali Pay) which convert
daily exercise statistics into carbon emission reduction
equivalent. For the year ended 31 March 2018, our
employees has achieved a total of 3,097kg carbon emission
reduction through this initiative.

In February 2018, Along Grid was granted the 1SO14001:
Certificate of Environment Management System Certification.

Waste management

No hazardous waste is generated from the operation of the
Group. Our non-hazardous waste mainly consists of general
office waste. To ensure our waste disposal methods are in
line with local regulations, we engage professional cleaning
service providers and contractors to handle this waste.

Regulatory compliance

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that has a significant
impact concerning air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water or land, or generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste during the year.

COMMITMENT TO OUR COMMUNITY

The Group engages in a wide range of philanthropic efforts
to benefit the community. Such initiatives include employee
volunteerism, education and health care. In line with sound
corporate governance practice, donations and contributions
are subject to internal compliance guidelines and controls in
order to safeguard stakeholder interests.

The Group has adopted a public engagement and donation
policy to encourage service to the community through staff
voluntary efforts and by way of cash and in-kind donations.
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Based on our cooperation framework agreement with NCPU,
the Group is also planning to offer internship opportunities
to students with appropriate background.

In November 2017, Along Grid was accredited as a qualified
employer that offers internship opportunities to graduates
from software and information service related subjects in
university in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei area. As of 31 March
2018, Along Grid has offered internship positions to 4 such
candidates and also successfully assisted them to secure job
offers subsequently.

2018 Environmental Key Performance Indicators

*ETFEﬁiiéit NWRBRITNEZHEER
C AEBARREFERABEEEESS
E‘JE’fX%EkT\aE%E °

R2017%F11 8 - BEARIRER I &
EERBEBEETFI R EERHFEASEE
EEREM | HZE2018F3A318 © HME
BRELR - KEFTLAKEFRRANLE
BLERREEKE  WEEEZIMEENR
ABIEHABEREE TIERERS -

2018 FERERBENISE

Emissions

2358

Greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes Co, e) Note T

— Scope '] Note 2 _$EE1 bz 15
— Scope 2 Note3 — &3 [E] s 84
Energy consumption BEIRERES
Electricity (MWh) B OKE/R) 140
Petrol (Tonne) y0m (W8) 5
Paper consumption FH=E
Paper (tonne) 4o (WA) 0.065
Paper recycled (tonne) AROR ] 45 (R ) 0.065
Waste management REEMER
General office waste (tonne) tote4 —RE A EEEY) (R )i 1
Notes: it
1. “tonnes CO,-e” is the short form of tonnes carbon dioxide 1. [Z& it g & R — S LiRBEE S EHE
equivalent.
2. Scope 1 emissions generated from petrol from fleet. 2. HIF RSB HBER -
3. Scope 2 emissions generated from the electricity consumed by 3. HE2REAEFBRAZTHSE
office of the Group.
4, Rounded to the nearest tonne. 4. EUEZE BT HINE o
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting to shareholders
their report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As an information technology service provider in China’s
electric power industry, the Group mainly provides electric
power related software systems, technical services and
hardware to various electric companies.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiaries are
set out on page 133 of this report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required under
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), comprising a discussion and analysis
of the Group's performance during the year, a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2018, as well as
an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group, are provided in the following sections:

o “Financial Review"” on page 14.

. “Chairman’s Statement”, “Business Review"”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Group
Capital Resources and Liquidity” and “Key Financial
Information” on pages 7 to 30.

o “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” on pages 27 to
30.

o “Financial Risk Management” in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 149 to
151.
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o “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 31 to 54.

o Discussions on the Group's environmental policies
and performance, an account of the Group’s key
relationships with its stakeholders and the Group'’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group
are provided in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 55 to 63.

All such discussions form part of this report.
GROUP PROFIT

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 87 to 88. The state of
affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 89 to 90 and note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report, respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (year ended 31 March
2017: Nil).

RESERVES

The reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 91 to 92 and note
21 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group

made donations of RMB0.8 million in total to charitable
organisations (year ended 31 March 2017: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five
Directors: Mr. Wang Dongbin (Chairman and executive
Director); Mr. Wu Hongyuan (Chief Executive Officer and
executive Director); and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ng Kong Fat, Mr. Han Bin and Mr.
Wang Peng.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of
this report, the following changes to the Board composition
took place on 5 February 2018:

(@) Mr. Ng Kong Fat was appointed as independent non-
executive Director;

(b) Mr. Han Bin was appointed as independent non-
executive Director; and

(©) Mr. Wang Peng was appointed as independent non-
executive Director.

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Dongbin and Mr. Wu Hongyuan
shall retire at the Annual General Meeting. In addition, Mr.
Ng Kong Fat, Mr. Han Bin and Mr. Wang Peng, who were
appointed by the Board on 5 February 2018, shall hold office
until the Annual General Meeting pursuant to Article 109 of
the Articles of Association. All of the above retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received written confirmation from
all Independent Non-executive Directors regarding their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors as independent.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the
“Information on Directors” section of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company pursuant to which they agreed
to act as executive Directors for an initial term of three
years with effect from the Listing Date. The term of service
shall be renewed and extended automatically by one year
on the expiry of such initial term and on the expiry of every
successive period of one year thereafter, unless either party
has given at least three months’ written notice of non-
renewal before the expiry of the then existing term.
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Each of our INEDs has signed a letter of appointment and has
been appointed for an initial term of two years commencing
from the Listing Date renewable automatically for successive
term of one year each commencing from the next day after
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by our INEDs or our Company expiring at the end of
the initial term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company
within one year and without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty. Directors liability insurance is in place to protect the
directors of the Company or of its subsidiaries against any
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors. The Company’s Shares was listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 2 March 2018 and the relevant provisions in the
Articles of Association and the Directors’ liability insurance
are in force as of the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which a subsidiary,
fellow subsidiary or holding company of the Company was
a party in which a Director of the Company or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year 31 March 2018 or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year ended
31 March 2018.
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company had not entered into any connected
transaction during the year ended 31 March 2018 which
is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. Related
party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2018 are disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company

Long positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company

LI iy e

|

HERERS

RARNEZE2018F3A31HILFE R E
I AERZERE ERB T AR ENRER
S o ﬁ%lﬁé@izmsim 31TAIEFER
SIS ERREE A T2 SR A B SRR MR 24

EERBEESTHRAERKRSG - HER®G
&F%ZE@EE/AF

R2018F3A31H  ARBIEEN&ZRTTHR
ABRA QRS EERBEEZE (EERLFE
KRB EEMEXVE) 2 B fn - BRI &
BHFREAREESF M EGAEXVEET
&%S/MBE%D IN/NS DN B i ) 5
Ke (BIERERE %&Hﬁgwuzzmﬂa
%EZ%I;?{EEE&—A?‘EHZTE\&/X?) 54
BEELERARFREEFES LY i"iﬂﬂﬁﬂ%%z
EIREHEF 2 B - SR EEESTAIE A
BARRNAI MRS ABINT

RAERBRG - HEARG RES 2SR
B

RAR AR RAGREIR (7.2 4 &

Approximate

% of

Number of  shareholding

Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held BERE

= 59 RntE BERHHE BMAOBESL

Wang, Dongbin Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000 15.745%

TR, R rE s

Note: PR

1 These shares were held by Smart East, which was wholly owned 1 ZE M AD B Smart EastiE A - RA®RER -

by Mr Wang Dongbin as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 March 2018, none of the Directors,
substantial shareholders of the Company nor any of their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business which causes or may
cause significant competition with the business of the Group.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2018,
other than the interests and short positions of the Directors
as disclosed in the section titled “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above, the following persons
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange:

EEYSTEE 3 ek f

REZE2018F3A31HILLFE EFHEE
EAZBEA(ERER ETWHAADBERER
HARE B AR S Al REiE R B S R
FRERS(RER 2 EEHRIN) A TR

S RMERGIATHRE ZRRE

MARNREBERERITHRABRAL © R
2018%F3A31H B Ll EFE RERTTR
ABREG - HERGD RESH 2 Eas %
BIMEBEZARREERESTTRAEY
Mz RRBIN - THIALEARR R IRAD A
RARK (D P B IR IR E 5 M EIEHIEXVEE
F2REIDEIREAAAREIEE  HEE
SRR EIRIKE F M E S IS0 55336158
EHF2ZLM  SANG AR R REB AT
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Interests and short positions of substantial FTERRREQARARGREBROZERR
shareholders in the Shares and underlying Shares of RE
the Company

Long positions in the Shares of the Company ARGl 172 i
Approximate
% of
Number of  shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held BERE
=g B9 REHE BFERAEE BHANBEDL
Smart East Beneficial owner 60,000,000 15.745%
EnEAA
Xiong Weigin Interest of spouse 60,000,000@ 15.745%
= [Ty e
Long Eagle Beneficial owner 60,000,000® 15.745%
EmEAA
Cao Wei Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000® 15.745%
Bz P EE R
Wang Jiangping Interest of spouse 60,000,000@ 15.745%
I fe B
Main Wealth Beneficial owner 60,000,000 15.745%
EnEEA
Li Kangying Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000 15.745%
e SYEE B
An Ning Interest of spouse 60,000,000® 15.745%
TZE fe B
Union Sino Beneficial owner 60,000,000 15.745%
EnEAA
Wu Zhanjiang Interest of a controlled corporation 60,000,000 15.745%
RENT S AEE R
Zhang Jianhua Interest of spouse 60,000,000® 15.745%

SRiEHE
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Approximate

% of

Number of  shareholding

Name Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held R

£B B9 fEmME BHERGOEE BABE DL

Chance Talent Beneficial owner 45,072,000 11.828%

EnEEA

CCBI Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000 11.828%
SR ERE R

CCB International (Holdings) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000@ 11.828%
P EE R

CCB Financial Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation ~ 45,072,000© 11.828%
AR R

CCB International Group Holdings  Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000 11.828%
Limited R EE R

China Construction Bank Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000 11.828%

Corporation Ry EEER
Central Huijin Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 45,072,000 11.828%

Notes:

XY AE

These shares were held by Smart East, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Dongbin, an executive Director, as at the date of
this report.

These shares were held by Smart East, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Wang Dongbin as at the date of this report, and Ms.
Xiong Weigin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Dongbin.

These Shares were held by Long Eagle, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Cao Wei as at the date of this report.

These Shares were held by Long Eagle, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Cao Wei as at the date of this report, and Ms. Wang
Jiangping is the spouse of Mr. Cao Wei.

These Shares were held by Main Wealth, which was wholly
owned by Mr. Li Kangying as at the date of this report.

These Shares were held by Main Wealth, which was wholly
owned by Mr. Li Kangying as at the date of this report, and Ms.
An Ning is the spouse of Mr. Li Kangying.

These Shares were held by Union Sino, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Wu Zhanjiang as at the date of this report.

AR

1

20184}

ZERD BSmart EastiF B - RARER -
ZARHIEWMES  ARRHITES &
BWA -

ZEM D B Smart EastiF A - RATREH -
ZARHTIRBEERERE  MARAEL
TRIAT RS AN -

ZE R flong Eagle#H - RAMER -
ZARIAERLLERERA ©

Z LMD Mlong Eagle$ A - MAREH -
ZATBHEREELERE  METITFRLT
ThEE AR -

2 % B% 15 8 Main Wealth3% 5 - R AR E
A ZARHEENRELELEHS -

2 % B 15 8 Main Wealth3% B - R AR E
B ZARHERELLL2EHA  MLE
TR BTREE LN -

ZE M) B Union Sino¥s B - RAREH -
ZATHEBI AL EEE -
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8 These Shares were held by Union Sino, which was wholly owned
by Mr. Wu Zhanjiang as at the date of this report, and Ms.
Zhang Jianhua is the spouse of Mr. Wu Zhanjiang.

9 These Shares were held by Chance Talent. China Construction
Bank Corporation was owned by Central Huijin Investment
Limited as to approximately 57.31% as at the date of this
report. CCB International Group Holdings Limited was wholly
owned by China Construction Bank Corporation as at the
date of this report. CCB Financial Holdings Limited was wholly
owned by CCB International Group Holdings Limited as at the
date of this report. CCB International (Holdings) Limited was
wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited as at the date
of this report. CCBI Investments Limited was wholly owned
by CCB International (Holdings) Limited as at the date of this
report. Chance Talent was wholly owned by CCBI Investments
Limited as at the date of this report. Each of Central Huijin
Investment Limited, China Construction Bank Corporation,
CCB International Group Holdings Limited, CCB Financial
Holdings Limited, CCB International (Holdings) Limited and CCBI
Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares
which Chance Talent is interested in.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 5 February 2018 for the purpose
of enabling the Group to grant share options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, no share option was
granted, exercised and cancelled.

The details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

72 Annual Report 2018  OneForce Holdings Limited

[ {1

e | L || [T T T gl et
1 FW—| i bl - -
8 ZE D A Union Sino# A » RAREHR -

ZARMRBTEERERR - MREER
TRIRRBOT A REE -

9 It %5 P2 17 B3 Chance Talent# 4 R &
B REZERETROBR AR BHPRE
SREERETARMEBHLIS7.31% - RA
®EBR - BTEBREEERARARBASP
HERBTROERARZERSE - RA
HBER BTERMIZERBRARIHETEH
BREEIERERANSEER - RARE
A 2R ER) BRA R BRI T
REBRARZEHEE - RAHRER + CCBI
Investments Limited /3 32 R BIBE (12 3% ) B IR
NAZEHESR - RAIREH © Chance Talent
F1CCBI Investments Limited 2 & #H& - Fk
EESREBREMAT - PREERRITRG
BRAR - BITEBRSEERERAFR - &
TEBMIZEBRERAR - EEREAKRGER)E
IR A7) 2. CCBI Investments Limited & B 57
Chance Talent/5 = B 15 B AR & ©

BT E

RAFF2018F2 A5 BRI — BB AR
E([EEIERTE]) - LS REB MR
TLEERNBRE  EANEAAEETE
I E B2 S8R sk Bl -

REZE2018F3A31HFE @ EEREER
i fTE SRS o

BRERT I 2 FBENAERE

R 17 R

Br SO EE 2 BERRAERTEIYN - A E BT
S AT S e A E A A R BT D - S E
N N/NC VA S CIN S 3 =g A E B @I N/NE
BT - MAREE2018F3 A31HIEER
B el F N B R DA E R S B 85 1

N
2
EE



- T S A

o -

bl

Directors’ Report

EEERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARES/DEBENTURES ISSUED

Other than the Capitalisation Issue and the Global Offering
as disclosed in the Prospectus, no shares or debentures of
the Company were issued during the year ended 31 March
2018.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the percentages of

revenue attributable to major customers of the Group were as
follows:

BrBERE

MEERANFESESANL EARBEST
BERZHRTE - EARBERLIIREA K
REBEEM -

BRITRG,ES

HBREPMFEE 2 ERNMEBEITREIREE
Gh - RABREZE2018F3 8318 IEF W
E|EITEMRD RES °

ARRBAFBEN A B REMEE21

fBE - HEREE EhmEs

AEZE2018F3A31BEE » ARAISHHT
KB AR AR « &k iE B AA BT
MEH o

IREFRHER

REZE2018F3A31HFE » AEEKRA T
DREZREANAERRREZ B
N

Percentage of
total revenue
of the Group

A E RS

HWEEIL

The largest customer B-RAEF 76.98%
Five largest customers combined A AREPEF 97.19%
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the percentages of
purchases attributable to the major suppliers of the Group
were as follows:

REZE2018F3A31HFEE  AEERTE
HERRBLHASEBAREBZA LW
T

Percentage of
total purchases
of the Group

R EERE

HEEDL

The largest supplier B AHER 33.86%
Five largest suppliers combined A AR ER &5 61.60%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of Directors own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had
any interest in the major customers and/or suppliers noted
above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
at all times throughout the period from the Listing Date to
31 March 2018 as required under the Rules Governing the
Listing of the Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting (the “AGM") of the Company
will be held on Friday, 14 September 2018. Shareholders
of the Company should refer to the details regarding the
AGM in the circular to be despatched by the Company and
the notice of meeting and form of proxy accompanying
therewith.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 11 September 2018 to Friday, 14 September
2018, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 10 September 2018 (Hong Kong
time), being the last registration date.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018 have been audited by KPMG
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the 2018 annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
OneForce Holdings Limited
WANG Dongbin

Chairman

Beijing, China, 22 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

E_M?%lﬁﬂiiﬁ*':

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
OneForce Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of OneForce Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 162, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2018, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flows statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

BARETEE

FRET FEERERMNEEHE - RBR
UAFGAVBRENEAR/EENSE
] o EUTHEERMBABRBESMBR
REHABRRETREN - ZMATELHE
LERIRIRHEBHER o

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Recognition of contract revenue

BRI RETER

Refer to accounting policy note 2(g) and note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI A RN T 2(q) 8 2 51 BUE R A 514
The Key Audit Matter
BREAER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMREAPEEZZEANS X

The Group’s business involves entering into
contractual relationships with customers to provide a
range of services, including the provision of design,
implementation, enhancement and upgrades of
software systems and the provision of technical
services for power grid and other distribution
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").
EEENEB S RATPITLANBE - ARHE—
IR - BERPEARANMBE([HEDEER
PR BIRRET ~ 1T » BRI RS R AR
B ARES -

A significant proportion of the Group’s revenue and
profits is derived from long — term contracts, most of
which are fixed price contracts.
EEENRI WS FFRERRAEL - HhX
Mo RBEEBREL -

The recognition of revenue on long-term contract
is based on the stage of completion of work
performed on a contract at the reporting date. The
recognition of revenue for an incomplete project is
dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
contract as well as the work performed to date.
REPSONKRRTDIERBRE BRSO ETTZT
YEEN TEAKBE ERHERR o ARTTACIA B VIR FEREUR T
BRNMFRER  URESEHETIEE -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
contract revenue included the following:

HAFHE S MR EREFERENA TSR

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
recognition of contract revenue, including
the controls over recording work done,
invoicing and cash receipts;

. B R N 5T (il 1 6 KO W e B AR B0 3 2 ED 2
RFH&RET - TEEARILE - BIEYRE
BRE TR TIE - BRELBR S WEAZES

o selecting a sample of contracts, using a
variety of quantitative and qualitative criteria,
and performing the following procedures for
each contract selected:

. HEESHER - ERTRKEE KEMRE
N FTERE S IEE N EBHEIA TR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recognition of contract revenue

BRI

FRETEE(E)

Refer to accounting policy note 2(q) and note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

BRI BRI M T 2(0) 89 B 5B KA it4
The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAREBSPEEZSEEANG X

Forecasting the outcome of a contract involves the
exercise of significant management judgement in
relation to estimating the total costs for individual
contracts. These assumption include estimating
future labour costs required to complete the contract
based on the customised specifications of individual
contract. Errors in contract forecasts could result in
a material variance in the amount of profit or loss
recognised to date and therefore also in the current
period.
TRENER P REEGTEEG AR EREE
HEBEAFE - ELBRRBEEENBES O E SR
BIRIEET TR A K PIFBEARKEA LKA » & 49788
AR BB S AN BRSHEEFEERER
WM B R ER a5

We identified the recognition of contract revenue
as a key audit matter because contract revenue
accounts for a significant proportion of the
Group's revenue and because the recognition of
contract revenue involves a significant degree of
management judgement in assessing factors which
can be inherently uncertain and may be subject to
management bias.

BRI OKRAERSBAREASTE  RAREL
WREEEBEWRRNRAL - BEOKREERS
NEHE Al e F BB T HEE M EZRIEHERNE
BREHESTAIRFEEEEERRENER
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inspecting key terms, including
pricing, deliverables, timetable and
milestones, which were set out in
the contracts and inquiring of the
relevant project managers about key
aspects of the contract, including the
estimated total contract costs, key
project risks, contingencies and billing
schedules;
BESOHIWER - T - FEXR
REBRBET 2R MAHEER L
BEARNNTIEE @ B2
BAKA - TREARR - HAEE
N B B AR

challenging the underlying
judgements of senior operational and
financial management personnel in
their estimations of total estimated
contract costs and estimated costs to
complete the contract where it was
still in progress at the reporting date
by comparing their estimates with
relevant underlying documentation,
including suppliers’ quotations and
agreed contracts;
RAKEMRELRVEERABNG
FREMEXH (RRERBOHRER
BEAK)LLE - BREEMGTAML
A KRR R TR E B B DEE
TTHEE KR A ET AR E I #9AERE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BARETEIE(E)

Recognition of contract revenue

SRR ETER

Refer to accounting policy note 2(qg) and note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

AR R A RN 3 2(q) R S 5T IR R it4

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

RREER RMREFPEREZBENG E

- comparing items recorded as contract
costs during the year with suppliers’
contracts, third party engineers’
certifications of work completed,
where applicable, and other relevant
underlying documentation;

- BERARYRE LK ARIER HEit
EREGH - BE=HIRMHEAMTIIE
SERK RS AR (RNE R ) N B fh B A S
FTLLRR

- agreeing total contract revenue to the
contracted terms;
= W & KQERE B S K

- comparing the percentages of
completion as assessed by the
Group's project managers with the
customer’s certifications of work
completed,;

- ey EEEEALETIENTIA
DR S AN TETTKER

= recalculating the percentage of
completion based on contract costs
incurred up to the reporting date and
estimated total contract costs;

- EREZEREAHEENESHKAR
HEREHNKABHFAETIESD
Lk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Recognition of contract revenue

BRRERER

BARFTEEE)

Refer to accounting policy note 2(q) and note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

ELRIAE TR 2(q) R &SR K A at4

The Key Audit Matter
REREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMREAHEEZSEENG X
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on a sample basis, comparing management’s
estimated costs to complete selected
contracts at the end of the previous financial
year with actual costs incurred during
the current year and enquiring of the
management about any significant variances
identified; and

BRERELELREREN F—ERBFER
HETEREE S NN ABRFEELENE
BRECAN - (R E 2R fE A R AT a8 Bl B (E R EE K
ZRE R

performing site visits to a sample of major
contracts in progress at the reporting date
and discussing with site project managers the
stage of completion and services provided.
EMERNBEAHETHIHNETESNK
A - WEIRISIE B 4F IR SR T LRE B P IR
HE IR -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Allowances for doubtful debts

RERERE

jlgvieee s EL
Aot

-

REETEEE)

Refer to accounting policy note 2(k) and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

BT B IRE M 2008 &5 R R AT 15
The Key Audit Matter
ARETEH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRARFTPEEZBEANG X

The Group’s operations gave rise to significant trade
receivable balances and gross amounts due from
customers for contract work at the reporting date.
As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables and gross
amounts due from customers for contract work
amounted to RMB88,929,000, which represented
41.1% of the total assets of the Group as at that
date.

RIBERH > EXENKEEHELREEFHRK
IR R RN R P& A TI2FIAEEE - )R2018%F
3A318 ' ESRWFIBERERE P &K ITENRIEA
B ARYS88,929,000T - IEFEEEE RBEE
B41.1% ©

Trade receivables and gross amounts due from
customers for contract work are reviewed by
management on an individual customer basis at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. These
evaluations focus on the ageing of the amounts due,
the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay and also take
into account information specific to the customers as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customers operate.
MREREHR - EEBRERFTFEERTEHE
WHIBENEWEFEHTIENIALRE  UEETLER
FEZEERERRE - ZFM A X2 HAHMIEL
AR B P LAMERIHARY 2 B kA0 8% M IR B YR 71 B
N WERZFPONFEENREFPKEMERNEE
BRI EHL o

Our audit procedures to assess the adequacy
of allowances for doubtful debts included the
following:
BAFAERREHENZ I UENERRFBEATE
18

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and
recognising allowances for doubtful debts;

. B AT R EE B S  ERWE RERR
R BARN T BRI RE - BTk
BIEAMIL

o comparing, on a sample basis, the
categorisation of trade receivables and gross
amounts due from customers for contract
work in the ageing report with invoices
issued, contract terms, contract progress
reports and other relevant underlying
documentation;

. ML BRI S B 5 EUGRIE R ERE
PENIEFIBHEAN S REDH AN
T SRER - GREERS MEMERX
(E3
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Allowances for doubtful debts

RERRAE

Y Wy
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Refer to accounting policy note 2(k) and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

BT BRI M T 200 25T B R 7T 15
The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RAREBSPEEZSEEANG X

S e L e

We identified assessing adequacy of allowances for
doubtful debts as a key audit matter because of
the significance of the balances of trade receivables
and gross amounts due from customers for contract
work to the consolidated financial statements and
because of the significant management judgement
required in estimating the allowances for doubtful
debts at the reporting date, which can be inherently
uncertain.

BB EREEENTSUERESFARETS
B RERGEMBRRANE SR IALE R M E
WEFPEHNITEFIRAEREABNKRE BHPETR
RRAEFEEEEBFHAIRAENETEEMNE
R o
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obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of overdue trade receivables
and gross amount due from customers for
contract work and evaluating the allowance
for doubtful debts made by management
for these individual balances, if any, with
reference to the customer’s financial
condition, the ageing of overdue balances
and historical and post year-end payment
records;
Eﬁ”“f@l"%ﬁﬁﬂﬁf’f%l*%ﬁ%m&}*%%}f

B #) T2 FRIE AT Y [ 1 2l B 4 R S R A
EEJE%%%%%JEEMHNR B RS ER D BR IR
UARGBAE B F 45 B 1R N RO R mh 22 5 (B Bl &
ERET IR RER B4

assessing the historical accuracy of
management’s processes for estimating
allowances for doubtful debts by comparing
the utilisation, write-offs and new allowances
made in the current year with the balances
of trade receivables and gross amounts due
from customers for contract work as at 31
March 2017; and

RBLBAFERMER - MH M EE R
HEN201743 A31 B E 5 R IR #4
NEWEF &N TEFIAEE  THHERE
BEMTRERENREFHERE - &

inspecting cash receipts, on a sample basis,
from customers subsequent to the financial
year end relating to trade receivable balances
and gross amounts due from customers for
contract work as at 31 March 2018.
MERENMRELARZBE TP IR HE
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, and no for other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE B EN S M B|AAEH ST

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
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deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our {a] 8 KERFA ©

audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yeung Ka Chun, Dennis.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

a A= 22 %
%L::kﬂﬁﬁ
For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB"))

HE2018F3A31ALFE
(AARBTAREDITR)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Selling expenses

Administrative and other operating
expenses

Profit from operations

Costs incurred in connection with the
initial listing of the Company’s shares

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year attributable
to equity shareholders of the
Company

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (RMB cents)

A
FHERA

=7
HAp A

HEEM
TR EEMEEER

RN

BRAARRRO ER LT

PREEAERRA

BRBE AR R

PrS#

ARTEZRREEFR

2l

BRAER
EAXREE(ARED)

The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

2018 2017

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B aE NS AXETT
4 85,799 87,338
(45,631) (47,882)

4(b) 40,168 39,456
5 7,094 4,806
(4,700) (4,457)

(10,877) (9,580)

31,685 30,225

(11,157) (8,533)

6 20,528 21,692
7 (3,806) (3,688)
16,722 18,004

10 5.71 6.32

SEZEFI2EMFAKGEVSHE—
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBEaREtEEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Expressed in RMB)
BZE2018F3A31BILFE
(AARKETIR)

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T BN S
Profit for the year FERHER 16,722 18,004
Other comprehensive income for the FREMEEWRA (BRBE)
year (after tax)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently  EignJEFHiEEIERAIER -
to profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation —HRERZYEBHEN =5
into presentation currency (2,958) (1,035)
Total comprehensive income for AATAREERRELER
the year attributable to equity 2HEBRALE
shareholders of the Company 13,764 16,969
The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated % 2E MR AR & BT S TRk —

5
financial statements. =ipa)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SE BB R

At 31 March 2018
(Expressed in RMB)
20183 H31H
(AARETR)

2018 2017
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE AR Tt NG S
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR E 11 785 599
Intangible assets mREE 12 18,153 5,962
18,938 6,561
Current assets REBEE
Inventories w5 14 8,036 6,577
Trade and bill receivables Z RN N RN EE 15 91,132 69,656
Prepayments, deposits and other TaftFRIE - e REM
receivables FEUS R IE 16 10,650 10,706
Cash and cash equivalents HE RIBESZEEY 17 87,409 35,411
197,227 122,350
Current liabilities REBAG
Trade payables B ENRIE 18 5,606 2,917
Other payables and accruals HibEM I R ERTRY 19 12,579 8,188
Income tax payable FETFRB R 20(a) 6,807 7,699
24,992 18,804
Net current assets rBEEFE 0 172,235 103,546
Total assets less current liabilities EEARBRBAE 191,173 110,107
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRTEEE 20(b) 2,853 418
Net assets EEFH 188,320 109,689

The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated FISEEF 162 B T MRS T HRE—
financial statements. o -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e BIRR R (F)

At 31 March 2018
(Expressed in RMB)
#2018F3A31H

(AARETR)

Note
FaE

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 22 June 2018.

Wang Dongbin
ERM
Director

EF

The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.
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REEEE

Wu Hongyuan

R
Director

EF

OneForce Holdings Limited

21

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
NSl ARETT
3,083 =
185,237 109,689
188,320 109,689
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
GEEREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2018

(Expressed in RMB)

BE2018F3A31HILLFE

(AAREEHR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAREERRES
Share Share  Other Statutory Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserves reserves reserve  profits  equity
RE RORE HftfEE EERE EXRE RRN EZLR
Note  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE  ARE  ARE AR® AR ARE ARE
i T T T T T T T
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
21(@)  21d)i) 210y - 21(di)) - 21(d)iv)
(s (s (s (s (B
20() - 21d)i) - 21(d)i) - 21(d)ii)) - 21(d)iv))
At 1 April 2016 20164718 - - 50,000 2,323 - 12,041 64,364
Changes in equity for 220175
the year ended 3B31BLLEE
31 March 2017: EREE .
Profit and total FREF R
comprehensive 2ERALE
income for the year - - - - _(_1_,(??_;@)_ 18004 16,969
Issuance of shares B1ktp 21(0) - 25747 - - - - 25747
Contributions from ~ BIRETE
the Founding
Shareholders 21(d)ii) = - 54,609 = = - 54,609
Effect on equity BHHERN
arising from the %
reorganisation 21(d)i) - - (52,000) - - - (52,000)
Appropriation to BREZRE
reserves - - - 636 - (636) -
L .. . - By 2830
At31March2017 120175
3A31H - 25747 52,609 2,959 (1,035) 29,409 109,689
At 1 April 2017 MW2017F4R1R - 25747 52,609 2,959 (1,035) 29,409 109,689
The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated FOSEEF 162 B T MRS T HRE—
financial statements. #o o

20184}
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Continued)
mEERBER(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Expressed in RMB)
BZE2018F3A31BILFE
(AARETR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FARERERRES

Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained Total

capital premium reserves reserves reserve  profits  equity

RAE RORE HttfEE ZERE EXRE RSEN EDLR
Note  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARE  ARE ARE ARE ARE AR%® AR%
(i T T T T T T T

(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note

21(d)  21(d)i) 21 - 21(d)Gin)  21(d)iv)

(e (s (s (e (&

21(0) 21 21(di))  21(dii)) - 21(d)iv))

Changes in equity for Z2018%3A
theyearended31  31HLFEH#

March 2018: HEE
Profit and total FRHEFR
comprehensive 2ENALE
income for the year - - - - (2,958) 16,722 13,764
Issuance of shares BIIRG 21(c) 3,083 61,784 = = = - 64,867
Appropriation to BREZHE
reserves - - - 1,305 - (1,305) -
3,083 61,784 - 1,305 - (1,305) 64,867
At31March2018  R2018%
3A318 3,083 87,531 52,609 4,264 (3,993) 44,826 188,320

The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated FEISE R F 162 B TR E I E K —
financial statements. o o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Expressed in RMB)
BE2018F3A31BILFE
(AARKETR)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation

Changes in working capital:
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and bill receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in trade payables

Increase in other payables and
accruals

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Income tax paid

The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

RETDNRERE
BB AT 28 7

ABIER

FEEM

B Z YRR R
eSSl

BfFE - ek
Hoth fRUGR IR A
(1&10)

B 5N IRE N

HAbFER IR &
FETRASTIE AN

REms/ (FARS

EFED

2018 2017

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B aE NS AXETT
20,528 21,692

6(b) 2,695 1,617
(1,459) (3,135)

(21,476) (31,995)

56 (7,869)

2,689 457

3,552 2,200

6,585 (17,033)

20(a) (2,263) (1,760)

SEZEFI2EMFAKGEVSHE—
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements (Continued)

REREREBR(E)

For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Expressed in RMB)
BHZE2018F3A31AIEFE
(AARETR)

2018
Note RMB’000
it ARBTR

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Payments for self-developed intangible
assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of shares,
net of transaction costs

Capital contributions from the Founding
Shareholders

Net (increase)/decrease in advances due
from related parties

Payment for the acquisition of a
subsidiary

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect on foreign exchange rates
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year

RESEBAE (FTA)R
& F5 4,322

REFHNRERE

BEWE  WEREER
18 (492)

BEHBELEENR
(14,580)

2017

RMB’000
ARBTT

RETHFARSFE (15,072)

BMEFHNRERE

BT FTSR0E -
HIBRR S A 21(0) 64,867
B RE AT E
21(d)(ii) -
JE LA A B T Y A RROR
(3m), WA FE (947)
AT IR B A RIFIE
21(d)(ii) -

BMEZHRERSFER

27,762

7,307

342

________ 63,920
HERBLZEYEM
FEE 53,170

FNRERESEEY

17 35,411
INEE RSB

(1,172)

ERBERESEEY

17 87,409

35,411

The notes on pages 95 to 162 form part of the consolidated FEISE R F 162 B TR E MK —

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY &

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

OneForce Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 July 2016
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 2 March 2018 (the “Listing Date”).
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
design, implementation, enhancement and upgrades
of software systems and the provision of technical
services for power grid and distribution companies in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"”) and the
sale of hardware.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting year
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting
years reflected in these financial statements.

DEEHR
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T+ R FHR R R 5 SR T AR 75 LA
NS o

FESFEGR
(a) EHREBH

ZEMBRERIRIEHMEE
PR | BB B 5 o o5 22 R ([ B
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B B 7% i 5 2 Rl B ¥R i B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

2

96 Annual Report 2018

AAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of Preparation of the Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018 comprise the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
year in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, or in the year
of the revision and future years if the revision
affects both current and future years.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
Note 3.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AAREFIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0

(d)

Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued several amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting year of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s financial performance and
financial position for current or prior years
have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and
any unrealized profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealized gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

98 Annual Report 2018

Subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (Note
2(h)).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (Note 2(h)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Motor vehicles, office
equipments and other
equipments

3 to 5 years

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

) Intangible Assets

Expenditure on an internal research and
development projects is distinguished between
the expenditures during the research phase
and expenditures during the development
phase. Research activities involve original and
planned investigation undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding. Development
activities involve a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved
materials, devices, products or processes
before the start of commercial production or
use.

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year in which
it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalized if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalized includes the costs of
materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Capitalized
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (Note 2(h)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
year in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (Note 2(h)).

Amortisation of intangible assets shall
begin when the asset is available for use.
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortized from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Software and patents 3 to 5 years

Both the year and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAEN - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Leased Assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed year of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating
leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting years covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting year in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Impairment of Assets
() Impairment of Receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortized cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting year to determine
whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as
a default or delinquency in
payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization;
and

- significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAEN - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Impairment of Assets (Continued)

(i)

102 Annual Report 2018

Impairment of Receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortized cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Impairment of Assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of Receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent year the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade and
bills receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

S | il O L

e M
A

i e ——

FEETHEE)

(h) EEREGHE

(1)

20184}

JENYH IR R E ()

HRERFE @ BiE
EBiESBERY - AR
i 7] 62 B SRR (B S 18
BRELENSHEED
g2 AIEEERERE
BB EE R - BB
EERTREREE
REEEERENB
EFE I ERERBIE
EEAEEE -

BEEIREZ Y EA
FAEEME  HEEA
Yo 100 1 4% AR A A SR I
FEAREERENE S
FE W R IR K R R IR
HE 38 B R (B &5 18 BR
She HEILBERT - R
AR R {51 /85 18 A 788 48 PR
BARR - HAKER
AU E GRIR 8 R
K wRAsTAYKE
CRHERHEES
JE W R TR K FE W R 1B
Moss - MmEZERE
R AR B REW
SR TRD - H&
Y Bl 1 B 5T Al i B
B 05 1 & B B R
BRE TIUABE - Hiy
BBEREZHRHER
Y [3] 9 5¢ B 85 & 2R
BEENIBmRER

TTHERERAT 103



?i

o e LGN, e

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAEN - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Impairment of Assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of Other Assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting year to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- intangible assets, and;

- investment in a subsidiary in
the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments
of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Impairment of Assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of Other Assets
(Continued)

- Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), or
value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

20184}

FESHBERE
(h) EEREGER)

e
M_m

)

wpiit -of

(i)  BMEEREE)

HERRE R

fid — I8 & E K
HER & E
FEEMHRE
B E A
Bl&£%E - AR
BEEAER
WMEERE - 3]
%FE?&%
REREBE
WL O D

Fic DARL 1K 7 22
BR(H—HE
fi2) By E EEH AR
HE - HEZE
ENEREET
AR E RN A
@RI~ (EE
R B B (40
AIETE)&ER
BE(WMAE

E) e
R (B RS TR )

fisi PR 7 BT U [E
T EHHE
REMEI
Al & B BUR &
B8 -

VERIEN kB4
RRZEEN
FREE - B
BEFEL &
BRZERME
B8 - BAEE
BREERER
BEEMEE T
ABR ©

THERBRAF 105



T R e T ey e

Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREAZHIN - MARKETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

()

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the year in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realizable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the year the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
year in which the reversal occurs.

Project Contracts in Progress

Project contracts in progress represent
the gross unbilled amount expected to be
collected from customers for contract work
performed to date. It is measured at cost plus
profit recognised to date (Notes 2(q)(i) and
2(q)(ii)) less progress billings and recognised
losses. Cost includes all expenditure related
directly to specific projects and an allocation
of fixed and variable overheads incurred in the
Group's contract activities based on normal
operating capacity.

Project contracts in progress are presented
as part of trade and bill receivables in the
statement of financial position for all contracts
in which costs incurred plus recognised profits
exceed progress billings. If progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits,
then the difference is presented as deferred
revenue in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U}

(m)

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (Note 2(h)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (Note 2(h)).

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Trade and other
payables are subsequently stated at amortized
cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

ANBREEDR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)
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Employee Benefits

(i) Short-Term Employee Benefits and
Contributions to Defined Contribution
Retirement Plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to business
combinations, and items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Income Tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting year, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
year as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in years into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a year, or years, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilized.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAEN - AAREKIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Income Tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided that they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of reversal
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
year and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Income Tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities,
which, in each future year in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realize the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realize and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARESR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

() Sale of Software Systems

Revenue from the sale of software
systems is recognised using the
percentage of completion method.
Revenue from a fixed price contract
is measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract
costs for the contract. When the
outcome of a contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable.

(i) Render of Technical Services

Revenue from the rendering of
technical services is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of
the transaction based on the progress
of work performed.

(iii) Sale of Hardware

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any
sales discounts.

(iv) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

114 Annual Report 2018

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting year. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group's presentation currency,
at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulation
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Related Parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if:

(a) that person has control or joint
control over the Group;

(b) that person has significant
influence over the Group; or

(0) that person is a member of the
key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related Parties (Continued)

(ii)

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(a)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i);

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity); or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)
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Related Parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(h) the entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a
person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to sale the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Note 22 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Service Contracts

As explained in Notes 2(j) and 2(q)(i), revenue
recognition on an uncompleted service project
is dependent on estimating the total outcome
of the service contract, as well as the work
done to date. Based on the Group’s recent
experience and the nature of the service
activity undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates of the point at which it
considers the work is sufficiently advanced
such that the costs to complete and revenue
can be reliably estimated. As a result, until
this point is reached the amounts due from
customers for contract work as disclosed in
Note 15 will not include profit which the
Group may eventually realize from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes
in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting year, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years
as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

(b) Impairment Losses for Bad and Doubtful
Debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts resulting from the
inability of the customers and other debtors to
make the required payments. The Group bases
the estimates on the ageing of the receivable
balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial
condition of the customers and debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be
higher than estimated.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(9]

Impairment of Intangible Assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of intangible asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of intangible assets as
described in Note 2(h)(ii). These assets are
tested for impairment yearically or whenever
the events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their recorded carrying amounts
may not be recoverable.

When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected future cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to
the level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the recoverable amount of the assets and
could result in additional impairment charge
or reversal of impairment in future years.
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B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(d)

Income Tax

The Group calculates current taxation based
on the taxable income for the year using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting year, and after taking
into consideration whether the Group has
satisfied the conditions as stipulated in the tax
rules and regulations which may result in the
Group be able to enjoy certain preferential
tax rates and tax allowable deductions.
Such preferential tax rates and tax allowable
deductions are subject to the approvals by the
relevant tax authorities in the following fiscal
year. Actual current taxation maybe higher
or lower than estimated at the end of the
reporting year.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the
design, implementation, enhancement
and upgrades of software systems and the
provision of technical services for power grid
and distribution companies in the PRC and the
sale of hardware.

Revenue represents contract revenue from the
sales of software systems and the provision of
technical services to customers and the sales
of hardware. The amounts of each significant
category of revenue recognised for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as
follows:

3 EFtHER AR (E)

(d)

i
Ao BIRIE S B RBIA

RAREFRCHETHER
BITHRERYEEEBAEE
BB MRS A K AR B F
AIAAKERREERNET
BB R KB R % 6 I5R iF
BRABRHAKRE - ZFEE
TR N B 75 R S JB A B R AR
BRERN T —MRFEME
HAHEE - RBEFARANE
BREDEAFR IR A] e R IO SR Y
CRE

4 WA R BB &

(a)

Sales of software systems HEIM R
Provision of technical services IR AR TS
Sales of hardware SHEME

20184}

L'ON

AEEXTERERTHER
REERAFR - #1T - 1&
Tt RFREM R R
MTARAS LA K SHE IR

WARMEREFHE ST
R RAR B AR TS R IHE
WA KU A - B E2018
FR2017F3A31B L F[EHRE
RHZEZERHWALT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T NS
51,746 42,835
20,495 25,619
13,558 18,884
85,799 87,338
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AARESR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue from customers with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenue are set out below:

4

WA K 7 ER R & (4F)

(a)

ZFEA
=B

Customer A
Customer B

Details of concentration of credit risk arising
from the customers are set out in Note 22(a).

Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by
business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which the information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments:

- Software systems: this segment
engages in the design, implementation,
enhancement and upgrades of
software systems for power grid and
distribution companies.

- Technical services: this segment
engages in the provision of
maintenance services on the software
systems sold.

- Hardware: this segment sells software

systems related hardware and spare
parts.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBFZHAIN - MARETIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment Results, Assets and Liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management
monitor the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following
basis:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred
by those segments. The measure
used for reporting segment profit is
gross profit. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the years ended 31
March 2018 and 2017. The Group's
other income and expense items, such
as other income, selling expenses,
administrative and other operating
expenses, and assets and liabilities,
including the sharing of technical
know-how, are not measured under
individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment
assets and liabilities nor information
concerning capital expenditure,
interest income and interest expenses is
presented.

Information regarding the Group's
reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 is set
out below.
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4
(Continued)

(b)

0]
(Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

4

Segment Reporting (Continued)

Segment Results, Assets and Liabilities

WA R 7 &R & ()
(b)  ZERERE (AK)
() TEEERAE

RE(E)

BER

e

Application  Supporting
solutions services  Hardware
EAER
BRAR T ERE B #
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0
ARETT AR¥ETR AR¥ETR AR¥Tx
Revenue from external  RESNEEF
customers and WA K
reportable segment QRS
revenue WA 51,746 20,495 13,558 85,799
Reportable segment A B33} 2
gross profit EF 27,659 9,534 2,975 40,168
2017
Application  Supporting
solutions services Hardware Total
fEREN
S SRS 1@ FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Revenue from external  REINEEF
customers and WA K
reportable segment A[ERERH
revenue WA 42,835 25,619 18,884 87,338
Reportable segment A EI3RH 5
gross profit EH 25,029 11,376 3,051 39,456
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
(i) Geographic Information

All of the Group’s operations are
carried out and the Group's customers
are located in the PRC. The Group’s
non-current assets, including property,
plant and equipment and intangible
assets are all located or allocated to
operations located in the PRC.

5 OTHER INCOME

4

5

WA K2 3R & ()

(b) B EIRE (F)
(i) HhEEH

AEBERBEHEE
EAREEFPHES
c REBZIERD
BEE(REDNE B

REMETEE)S
RHEDEEFE
ZE -

Hbg A

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT NS

Refund of value-added-tax (“VAT")  3R[E#8{EH ([H#EEH )

(Note (i) (BHEEG))
Others Eith
Note:
(i) Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations in the PRC,

entities engage in the sale of self-developed software in
the PRC and pay VAT at a rate of 17% are entitled to a
VAT refund to the extent of the VAT payable in excess
of 3% of the self-developed software sold.

6,901 4,725
193 81
7,094 4,806

BifaE

0] RETEOEBHARRA - EF
BREHEBTRERTEL XM
17%EEM 2 B » fHREHEED
BREHEE XTRERMFN3%
BRI SR ER R -

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BREE AR R
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREE AR A2 R 5518
(a) Staff Costs* (a) B T At
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Salaries, wages and other benefits  #% « TE RHAEF 23,493 22,406
Contributions to defined R A EHFCRIRET S
contribution retirement scheme Hx 1,874 1,663
25,367 24,069

20185 THERERLR 123



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAEEHI -

AARESR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

- [ pest—

BRB AR (4])

(a)  Staff Costs* (Continued) (a) BIMAEGE)
The employees of the subsidiary of the Group REBREH(TBIERE)
established in the PRC (other than Hong KB ATHESZM
Kong) participate in a defined contribution B b BT TR ) RO
retirement benefit scheme managed by the HORREFIETE o B %
local government authority, whereby this ME AT N ERES KNS
subsidiary is required to contribute to the SE19% B @t 2 -
scheme at a rate of 19% of the employees’ B AFTIMEEEDEE
basic salaries. Employees of this subsidiary EFERINFRIFEAEEZE L
are entitled to retirement benefits, calculated MGRIRETEIER B (R BIEE
based on a percentage of the average salaries B)EHFHEKFEEDLEE
level in the PRC (other than Hong Kong), from B RRIER) o
the above mentioned retirement scheme at
their normal retirement age.
The Group has no further obligation for B Fut sy - REFENE
payment of other retirement benefits beyond B H AR KGR By B
the above contributions. —S5ET o
(b)  Other Items (b) HEE
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT BN S
Depreciation and amortisation* e I
(Notes 11 and 12) (BI=E11%12) 2,695 1,617
Operating lease charges in respect AR AR E
of office premises HETEH 2,646 2,531
Auditors’ remuneration: BRI -
— statutory audit services —AEERT RS 64 110
— services in connection with the —BBEARREGD
initial listing of the Company’s HX_EmRARTE
shares 2,567 1,746
Research and development costs TS AR AN (B SRR M)
(other than amortisation) 1,145 822
Cost of inventories sold* (Note 14)  BE&FEMA(FizE14) 44,599 47,121
# Cost of inventories sold include # EEFEXRADRBES
RMB20,850,000 (2017: RMB20,759,000) A IR ARITE R

i M A R ¥ 20,850,000
L (2017 F + AR
20,759,0007T) * BHEEE
INEE A £ 3B EE6(a) BT
BENSERA S5 -

relating to staff costs, and depreciation and
amortisation, respectively, which amounts are
also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 6(a) for
each of these types of expenses.

124 Annual Report 2018  OneForce Holdings Limited



. T S T T
g == < |

mndf. )
= ak

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BZEEHAN - AARKIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #&£4&BXEXANFER

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statements () HZEERRANKRES

of profit or loss represent:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T N

Current tax — PRC Corporate

ENEABLE — hE 3%

Income Tax (Note 20(a)) Fr{S8: (H7E20(a))
— Provision for the year —FERE 1,371 3,843
Deferred Tax (Note 20(b)) ELEBE (MizE20(b))
— Origination and reversal of —EREENEER
temporary differences [EAE] 2,435 (155)
3,806 3,688
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) ZREABEFTENHREMRX
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HEETHRT Z EAHE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T NS S
Profit before taxation B F54 B A 20,528 21,692

Expected tax on profit before
taxation, calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the
jurisdictions concerned (Notes (i),
(i) and (iii))

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax concessions (Note (iv))

Actual tax expense

BB ATR R R TEHAR A
AR A ERER
B AR R AT &
CRRFEEQ) ~ (i) Baiii))

5,363 5,507

AAMHEINA S TS
-7 981 640
HEEe (Mt iv) (2,538) (2,459)
ERHERY 3,806 3,688
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in
Hong Kong is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31 March
2018 (2017: 16.5%).

(ii) The Company and the subsidiary of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the
PRC (including Hong Kong) are not subject
to any income tax pursuant to the rules and
regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

(iii) The subsidiary of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) is subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: 25%).

(iv) The subsidiary of the Group established in
the PRC, namely Along Grid, has obtained
an approval from the tax bureau to be
taxed as an enterprise with advanced and
new technologies, and therefore enjoys a
preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of 15% for the calendar years from 2016 to
2019.
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8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Executive Directors BiTES
Mr Wang Dongbin FRBEE
Mr Wu Hongyuan RELHEE

Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr Li Yuezhong RS

(resigned in October 2017) (2017510 &)

Independent BUkHTES
non-executive Directors
Mr Ng Kong Fat (appointed on R854

5 February 2018) (R2018E2 A5H
BZ(E)
Mr Han Bin (appointedon 5 B4
February 2018) (201882558
BZ(E)
MrWang Peng (appointed on T4
5 February 2018) (#20182558
RZE)

8 EEH

RIBCE B R BHEA) 5 383(1) 15 &
(RR(HBEFENZER)RPIE2

MRBENESHMOT

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses contributions Total
§e o RUMR
EShe BWFlE MR BINGTEER ok
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB*000
ARETT ARETT ARETT N ARETT
16 404 23 47 490
16 456 32 55 559
16 - - - 16
16 - - - 16
16 - - - 16
80 860 55 102 1,097
2018 TAHERERARF 127
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8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 B (E)
2017
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
He 2R
EEYka ENfis WML RIKGHEIER k]

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTE  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTRT  ARETR

Executive Directors yirExs
Mr Wang Dongbin TRBEE - 408 3 47 478
Mr Wu Hongyuan RS - 455 31 48 534

Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr Han Bin (appointed on BiEE

23 September 2016) (2016595235
RZ(E) - - - - -
- 863 54 95 1,012

On 23 September 2016, Mr. Li Yuezhong was M20165F9H23H AR EEES
appointed as non-executive Director. On 18 October ERFEAITES - N20175F10418
2017, Mr. Li Yuezhong resigned his post as non- B FHREERFIENTES - X
executive Director. On 5 February 2018, Mr. Ng Kong 20182 A5H » RH &L - B
Fat, Mr. Han Bin and Mr. Wang Peng were appointed EERTEBEEREZFERABLIENTT
as independent non-executive Directors. EEo
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the AEBRFATERESZAHS
directors during the years as an inducement to join or YEZR IR 51 HR A SK NN B 7N £5 (3 iy /) 57 P
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss SKEERAIE - TR BIEEFHEK
of office. There was no arrangement under which a A EMEETE B 2 HE -

director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.
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9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2017: two) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the remaining highest paid individuals
are as follows:

m@%ﬁﬁ¢ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ@&g;%guggﬁgﬁ!

REHMAL

Al A TR MRAL(20174F ¢
MWL) EE 2 FHME R8I EE - &
TE&RESHMA L ZEFRzENT

Salaries and other emoluments e R HE A
Discretionary bonuses E’J\$+ 4T
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEIRR

The emoluments of the individuals who are not
directors and who are amongst the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are within the following
band:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T N R
1,127 1,037

108 75

139 78

1,374 1,190

RIFEZRAAERRRSFHMA
THOFBN T TEE -

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

No emoluments were paid by the Group to these
individuals during the years as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

EHE(BT)E
1,000,000/ 7T

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT NS
3 3

REERFRILEENLF A LA E
B - fERIR S| EINA SN AN R R
HRT B S B B E
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based the profit attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB16,722,000 (2017: RMB18,004,000)
and the weighted average of 292,962,411
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended
31 March 2018 (2017: 285,071,182 shares).

The weighted average number of ordinary
shares is calculated as follows:

§ E— ] !

10 SRER
(a) BREXEF

BREABRFDREEE
20183 A31BIEFEARARD
A o AR B FE A i B A R
16,722,0007T (20174 : AR
#18,004,0007T) K B 21T
i N $9$0292,962,411
A% (20174 : 285,071,182/%)
FTE o

BB BT ENT

2017

Issuance of shares upon incorporation 3F1HAK 37 1% 21 TR (D 10,000 10,000
Issuance of shares on 7 September 7201659 H7H

2016 TITARAD 1,878 1,060
Capitalisation issue on 2 March 2018 7201853 H2H

BARNE#TT 285,060,122 285,060,122

Shares issued under the public R2018F3 A2 A RH

offering on 2 March 2018 BENEETRG 7,890,411 =
Weighted average number of shares B 31 T& 5 I F 598k

in issue 292,962,411 285,071,182

The Company was incorporated on 5 July
2016, and issued and allotted 10,000
shares in July 2016 (Note 21(c)). In order to
present a meaningful earnings per share,
the above 10,000 shares are regarded as if
they have been in issue since 1 April 2016.
The capitalisation issue took place on 2
March 2018 (Note 21(c)(iii)) is deemed to be
completed on 1 April 2016 and the weighted
average number of shares in 2018 and 2017
have been adjusted retrospectively.

(b) Diluted Earnings Per Share

There was no difference between the

basic and diluted earnings per share as the

Company did not have any dilutive potential

shares outstanding during the years ended 31

March 2018 and 2017.
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1

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1

%~ BERRE

Motor vehicles,
office equipments

and other
equipment
RE - WARE
REAbRE
RMB’000
AREETTT
Cost: R
At 1 April 2016 M20165F481H 1,027
Additions NE 40
At 31 March 2017 201743 H31H° 1,067
Accumulated depreciation: ZEiHinE
At 1 April 2016 20165418 238
Charge for the year FERAS 230
At 31 March 2017 20173 A31H 468
Net book value: BREEEE ©
At 31 March 2017 7201793 A31H 599
Cost: A
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4 /318 1,067
Additions NS 492
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3A31H 1,559
Accumulated depreciation: FEITE .
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A1H 468
Charge for the year FERY 306
At 31 March 2018 ®2018%3A318 774
Net book value: BRMEFER ¢
At 31 March 2018 M2018F3A31H 785

20184}
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12

BLEE

Software and
patents
BHEREF
RMB'000
ARET T

Cost:

At 1 April 2016
Additions

At 31 March 2017

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 April 2016
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2017

Net book value:

At 31 March 2017

Cost:

At 1 April 2017
Additions

At 31 March 2018

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 April 2017
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2018

Net book value:

At 31 March 2018

RS

720164818
NE

7201753 A31H

R :

MR20165F4 A1H
FERX

201753 A31H

SRR -

201753 A31H

BA

M2017F4 718
RE

20183 A31H

Rt :

M2017F4 818
FERX

720183 A31H

ARMEFER -

720183 A31H

The amortisation charges are included in “cost of
sales” in the consolidated statements of profit or loss.
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13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13

REBARRIRE

The following list contains the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group.

TREINEBFEAKERE BE
HBENHB RS

Proportion of ownership interest

FrERRkzLL =
Particulars of
Place and registered/ The
date of issued and Group's Held Held
Name of establishment/ paidup effective by the bya Principal
subsidiaries incorporation capital interest  Company subsidiary  activities
RY/EMRIEY =R/ BROR  AKEH —EHE
WELREE REH BRRAHE ERER FORRE  ARRE  IEXRE
Along Grid The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Design,
tREMEERS 25 May 2011 AR implementation,
BRAR) (Note () = 50,000,0007T enhancement and
EREBBEIHRIL 2011458258 upgrades of software
BRAF (M) systems and the
provision of technical
services and the sale
of hardware
Rt BT AR
REM R RIRER
PR B E R M
First Magic The British Virgin 1 share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
International Islands US$1 each REER
Limited 9 June 2015 \REREE
RERUES 1ETHRH
201566 A9H
Citimax Development  Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (" Citimax 26 January 2016 1R REZR
Development") BE
REZRBRAT 201617268
(IBER))

Note (i): The official name of this entity is in Chinese. The English

PRC.

MEG) : ZERBAXRTEEMZINGBEE
name is for identification purpose only. This entity was hE-o
registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the

20184}
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14  INVENTORIES 14 EE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T NS

Software systems under development 7EFF &R Z 4% 8,036 6,577

The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised MRERYHNEESESTOT -
as expenses as follows:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T N S

Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 44,599 47,121

15  TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES 15 EFZEWRFREKREE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T BN

Trade receivables B S REIERR 49,041 35,484
Bill receivables FEW = 2,203 900
51,244 36,384
Gross amount due from customers RWEFA AT A%
for contract work 39,888 33,272
91,132 69,656
All of the trade and bill receivables are expected to FEEAR —FE AU B 2 E 5 FEER R
be recovered within one year, except for retention MEWEE - N2018FE3A31HAA
receivables of RMB1,998,000 at 31 March 2018 R #1,998,0007T (20174 : AR¥E
(2017: RMB2,343,000), which are expected to be 2,343,000 ) W FEHA R —E& Uk E
recovered in more than one year. A JE (R 22 ZRIEBR A ©
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15  TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15 EZERWERREREE(E)
(a)  Ageing Analysis (a) FRERDM

The ageing analysis of trade and bill REEE S EURER K & E UK
receivables (excluding the gross amount due ER(TREEREFAAT
from customers for contract work), based ERIEARR )R EH RN
on the invoice date and net of allowance for MRIREE(INE) EOIRE
doubtful debts (if any), of the Group is as DI -

follows:

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ENS

Less than 1 year DR —4F 34,086 28,263
1 to 2 years —EWF 11,350 6,955
2 to 3 years ME=F 4,747 230
Over 3 years =FHE 1,061 936
51,244 36,384

Further details on the Group's credit policy is REFBZZERENSE Z:f
set out in Note 22(a). TBEIEE22(a)

(b) Impairment of Trade and Bill Receivables (b) BESEWERERREREE

RE

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bill EHE FERER S ERE
receivables are recorded using an allowance B REEEBIEREER
account unless the Group is satisfied that E:is%  BIEAREE SR
recovery of the amount is remote, in which Ol &% 2 Al gEHEE M - FEIL
case the impairment loss is written off against BN TREBR T EEHAE
trade and bill receivables directly (Note 2(h)). 5 FE IR BE 3 K2 B LN 22 15 i 3
The management consider the balance of (FizE2(h)) - EEEREE S
trade and bill receivables at the end of each JE U BR ZX N B UM = A B R
reporting year is fully recoverable. HERAEREER] 2REE -
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15  TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15 EZRWRERREKRZERE(E)
(c) Trade and Bill Receivables That are Not () RARENESEWERERRE
Impaired WEE
The ageing analysis of trade and bill 7 4 E Bl 2k F R A E R
receivables that are neither individually nor BHNEZEWEZ R EIWE
collectively considered to be impaired are as ERERE O T -
follows:
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T NS
Neither past due nor impaired R EATIARBE 47,143
Less than 1 year past due BE DR —F 16,297 17,626
1 to 2 years past due B —E=ME 9,871 3,831
2 to 3 years past due BHARE=F 3,235 908
Over 3 years past due BHA=FLA L 976 148
30,379 22,513
91,132 69,656

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to power grid and distribution
companies for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to power grid and distribution
companies that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

(d) Retention Receivables

At 31 March 2018, included in trade
receivables are retention receivables in respect
of project contracts of RMB15,871,000 (2017:
RMB8,738,000).
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15  TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15 EBZERWERFFKERZEE)
(e) Project Contracts in Progress (e) EEIREHN
At 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount M2018F3H31H » 5T AJEUR
of costs incurred plus recognised profits EEAHTIRRIBRE Y &
less recognised losses to date, included in SO EEKAIND B EF
the gross amount due from customers for WOHERABEEEABARE
contract work, is RMB159,994,000 (2017: 159,994,0007T (20174 : A
RMB107,852,000). R¥107,852,0007T) °

16 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16 Fa{IZIE - 4R B EKEIE

RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT BN S
Prepayments for costs incurred in FRARRBRMDERET
connection with the initial listing FrEE A R R BD TR - 508
of the Company'’s shares - 4,964
Prepayment for technical service fee  FiBRIS BTN 7KIA 6,505 -
Prepayment for miscellaneous H XA TFIE
expenses 828 1,269
Staff advances and other deposits BETRFREEMBE 1,834 1,108
VAT refundable ALREBER 954 2,861
Others Hh 529 504
10,650 10,706

17  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 BEeRBESEEYREMRS

CASH FLOW INFORMATION REER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BRERBESLEEYERE:
The Group KEEH

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ENSR

Cash at bank and on hand RITEAETFERE 87,409 35,411
The Group's operations in the PRC (excluding NEFNAE(FEBIN BZEFELAA
Hong Kong) are conducted in RMB. RMB R ABATET - ARKIIRAEH
is not a freely convertible currency and the e . [E L E (BRI
remittance of RMB out of the PRC (excluding B4 th B B i O NE & S48 78
Hong Kong) is subject to the relevant rules 358 AR BIETRFR o

and regulations of the foreign exchange
controls promulgated by the PRC government.
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17  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 B4 RBELZEYRE4BES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) REER(E)
(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from (b) BEIEELNEBYIER
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the TERIFAEEREEHE
Group’s liabilities from financing activities, EHaEEs  aiERek
including both cash and non-cash changes. IR E o  ppEEESEAL
Liabilities arising from financing activities are E’j ja EAEENREERBGASE S
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future ,,‘Li XEHEKE Y E AR
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s SEHELHESTENRS
consolidated cash flow statement as cash //‘bg_jszxiﬁéumi EopiEk
flows from financing activities. BE o
Net amount
due (from)/  Distributions
to related payable of a
parties subsidiary Total
(W), — &
FE{SERE 7 (= PN
RIERE 2R et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note 19)
(FizE19)
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4H 18 (48,379) 27,559 (20,820)
Changes from financing MERSRERE
cash flows:
Net decrease in advances due  FEURBERE 5 & (5008
from related parties FERAD 21,767 = 21,767
Total changes from financing ~ BB EREE
cash flows e 21,767 = 21,767
Other changes: Hir g
Non-cash transactions (Note (i) ~ FEZR 2 5 (P () 27,559 (27,559) =
Total other changes Hiegshes 000 27559 @759 -
At 31 March 2017 M201763831R 947 - 947
At 1 April 2017 R2017545818 947 - 947
Changes from financing MERSRERE
cash flows:
Net increase in advances due FEUR B B I5R0E
from related parties RN (947) = (947)
Total changes from financing ~ BB EREE
cash flows e (947) = (947)
At 31 March 2018 72018F3831H = - -
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17  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 17 B4 RELSZEYREMES

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) REER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from b) BEIBDEELENEGSYE
Financing Activities (Continued) (#8)
Note: izt :
() Non-cash transactions ) HHEEX5
Distributions payable of a subsidiary of M2017F3H318 - —HA
RMB27,599,000 was used to set off the M B A T ER DR AR
amount due from related parties as at 31 # 27,599,000 7T = A {EHK
March 2017. SH PR BEE 7 5RO -
18  TRADE PAYABLES 18 HEFENNE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT N

Trade payables to third parties FE=HBHENFIR 5,606 2,917
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled FrE B S EMNFIATEAN —FNER
within one year or are repayable on demand. FRNEKREHERE o

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, AEEREZRARE B HRENK
based on the invoice date, is as follows: HRBREDITIAT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T N R

Less than 1 year DR—%F 5,193 2,503
1 to 2 years —EMF - 259
2 to 3 years ME=4F 259 54
Over 3 years =FE 154 101

5,606 2,917
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19  OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 19 HitENFERETHEX

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T NS

Amounts due to related parties JE 1 RS 5 5k IE (i 5E24(0))

(Note 24(c)) - 947
Payables for staff related costs FERT B TAEREAK AR 1,819 2,206
Payables for costs incurred in BRARRRRMDE R ETAT

connection with the initial listing EERAHERZIE

of the company’s shares 6,293 =
Other taxes payables HALFETEIR 3,855 4,556
Others HAftb 612 479

12,579 8,188

20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 #ZABBRARANNITER
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Income tax payable in the consolidated () HZEHMBRRERAEMNSHTE
statements of financial position represent: HEHHNMT :

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T NS

At the beginning of the year REA] 7,699 5,616
Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FREHE (P17 (a) 1,371 3,843
Income tax paid BTSSR (2,263) (1,760)
At the end of the year RERXR 6,807 7,699
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20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 20
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

i3S

o gy e e

REMBRARANFER(R)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (b) CHRELEHESE:
The deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RIS MR RERER Y
consolidated statements of financial position EEMREAERREARNNE
and the movements during the years are as BT :
follows:
Capitalisation
of intangible
assets and
subsequent
amortisation
BEEE
EXRER
Hg e
RMB’000
ARETT
Deferred tax arising from: RETHISENIELERE :
At 1 April 2016 MR2016F4 318 573
Credited to the consolidated statement =t A45& 1Baisk (MET7(a)
of profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (155)
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A81H 418
Charged to the consolidated statement 1B 4R & B % (HiE7(a))
of profit or loss (Note 7(a)) 2,435
At 31 March 2018 720183 A31H 2,853
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (c) AEREEHBEE :

In accordance with the accounting policy
set out in Note 2(0), as at 31 March 2018,
the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of unused tax losses of
RMB2,718,000, as the directors considered it
is not probable that sufficient future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity.

1R 3% Bt 5 2(0) # F1 #9 & 5T I
W R2018F3A31H » A&
] 30 AR Bt K B B RS B 1R A
R #2,718,000 7T HE 32 IR FE T4
HEE  AEFRAEMBBEB
ek R & E I -] g
B 75 B R 2K P ER Ui ) K
SHRI BN EIE -
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20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2018, temporary differences
relating to the retained profits of the
subsidiary of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) amounted to
RMB49,797,000 (2017: RMB31,662,000) of
which no deferred tax liabilities in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these profits was provided as
the Company controls the dividend policy of
this subsidiary and it has been determined
that it is probable that such profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

142 Annual Report 2018

Movements in Components of Equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity.

OneForce Holdings Limited

20

21

RE BRI RABFREH(K)

(d)

AERIELEHEAE

R2018%3A31H  HEAAR
EERTE(TEESRE)
L E M B A R MR B i
FERZRSEAARE
49,797,0007C(20174F : AR
#531,662,0007T) ° ARAR
AR I Z B A B B9 AR B
K BEEEEARERATR
BRI EDIERBBEFN - )
I 48 5t 5 IR B B i A i R
RIBIRBEERIEAE -

B~ EERRE

(a)

IR0 BB

AEBEFREEDSANH
MEIRBRBEHEHIINEE
BmEHE -
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21  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 21 BAX - #FERRE(E)

(a)

Movements in Components of Equity @) BRI BE)(4F)

(Continued)

Details of the changes of the Company’s

ARABBEEREENES

individual components of equity are set out HEHEMT
below:
Share Share Exchange Total
capital premium reserve equity
AR Bin&(E B 5 TR B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB‘000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note 21(c)) ~ (Note 21(d)(i)) (Note 21(d)(iv))
(PEE21(0)  (HFaE21(d)i))  (PFEE21(d)(iv))
At 5 July 2016 (date 4201657 H5H
of incorporation) (MR A ) = = = =
Changes in equity  F12016%F7H858
for the year from 5  (FM & BH)
July 2016 (date of ~ Z2017%38
incorporation) to 31 F HARIMER
31 March 2017: BE
Total comprehensive ~ FR2E KT ALLEE
income for the year - - 887 887
Issuance of shares BITRRD
(Note 21(c)) (BtE21(0) - 25,747 - 25,747
At 1 April 2017 M2017F481R8 = 25,747 887 26,634
Total comprehensive ~ FRZEU A LEE
income for the year - - (3,284) (3,284)
Issuance of shares BIRM
(Note 21(c)) (BsE21(c)) 3,083 67,608 - 70,691
At 1 April 2018 201848 1H 3,083 93,355 (2,397) 94,041

20184}

THERBRAT 143



T iy o D) 11 1T ST
Notes to the Financial Statements
i E e
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)
(B ZBRA - AARESIR)
21  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 21 BA - FERBRE(E)
(b) Dividends (b) B’E
(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) FRAHRRNGIEZSRE
shareholders of the Company JEIL R E
attributable to the year
The directors of the Company do not HZEZ2018%F3 A31H
recommend the payment of a dividend ITEE ARFESE
for the year ended 31 March 2018. AR IR AR B, o
(c) Share Capital (o) BR
Movements in the Company's issued share RABBBITIRAE ST :
capital are as follows:
Nominal
value of
Number ordinary
of shares shares
KR&HEE ZEREE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Ordinary shares, issued and EBRTRAZEER :
fully paid:
At 5 July 2016 M201657A5H
(date of incorporation) (zFfAcsz BER) 2,500 =
Issuance of shares BT 9,378 -
At 31 March 2017 (Note () and (i) 5201743 H318
(B B (i) 11,878 -
Capitalisation issue on 2018%2 A5HHK
5 February 2018 (Note (iii)) B EE7T (M sEGi)) 285,060,122 2,306
Shares issued under the public NRBEEBBITRG
offering (Note (iv)) (B 5EGv)) 96,000,000 777
At 31 March 2018 720183 H31H 381,072,000 3,083
() The Company was incorporated as an (i) KRB 2016F7 A
exempted company under the laws of SHRER=SHEE

144 Annual Report 2018

the Cayman Islands with limited liability
on 5 July 2016 with authorised share
capital of HK$10,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each. On 5 February 2018, the equity
shareholders of the Company resolved
to increase the authorised share capital
of the Company to HK$20,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each.

OneForce Holdings Limited

Pl BERE
BRAR - AERAK
/10,000,000 7 7T,
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(BRAEEHI -

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(0

Share Capital (Continued)

(ii)

On 5 July 2016 and 15 July 2016,
the Company issued and allotted/
transferred 2,500 shares and 7,500
shares, respectively, at par value for
cash to Smart East Limited, Union
Sino Holdings Limited, Main Wealth
Development Limited and Long
Eagle International Limited, which
are companies owned by Mr. Wang
Dongbin, Mr. Wu Zhanjiang, Mr. Cao
Wei and Mr. Li Kangying (collectively
referred to as the “Founding
Shareholders”).

On 7 September 2016, an additional
1,878 of the Company’s shares
were issued and allotted to Chance
Talent Management Limited at a
consideration of HK$30,000,000
(equivalent to approximately
RMB25,747,000). Of the proceeds
received, HK$19 (equivalent to
approximately RMB16) was credited to
the Company’s share capital account,
and the remaining HK$29,999,981
(equivalent to approximately
RMB25,746,984) were credited to the
Company'’s share premium account.

21

B~ REERRE (&)

(o BAEE

(ii)

20184}

20167 A58 &
2016 67 A 15 H

7K A &) [A) Smart East
Limited * Union Sino
Holdings Limited * Main
Wealth Development
Limited&Long Eagle
International Limitedi%
HENERES BT
K BRE,#:%2,500/%
57,5008 %0 o %%
NAEIRERELE -
REThAE  BEL
RS (S
R BIFRER DS o

R2016F9A7H » &
N R)EEIM,878IE 1B
B # 1 f& 30,000,000
BLT(HERHAR
# 25,747,000 7T )
77 X B2 % F Chance
Talent Management
Limited ° 7£ & Y HX
BETEREE 19
BIT(HERBDAR
Bi16m) EFFARA
AIRAERES - W
T #) 29,999,981
T(HEERHDARE
25,746,98470) E &t A
AARRMDRERRES o
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c) Share Capital (Continued)

(iii)

146 Annual Report 2018

On 2 March 2018, 285,060,122
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
allotted and issued at par value to the
equity shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register
of members of the Company at the
close of business on 5 February 2017
by way of capitalisation of the sum
of HK$40,937,000 standing to the
credit of the share premium account
of the Company, and these allotted
and issued shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the then existing issued
shares. The calculation of earnings per
share is adjusted retrospectively based
on the new number of shares after the
above capitalisation issue (Note 10(a)).

On 2 March 2018, the Company
issued 96,000,000 H shares with par
value of HK$0.01 per share by way
of global initial public offering of the
Company’s H shares to Hong Kong
and overseas investors. The Company
raised approximately HK$43,580,000
(equivalent to RMB35,261,000) in
total. The excess of the net proceeds
over the nominal value of the shares
issued were credited to share premium.

The holders of ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

OneForce Holdings Limited

21

BRA - HERRE ()

(0

B2 ()

(iii)

(iv)

MR2018%F3A2H -
285,060,122 % & I&
HE0OI BT ER
EIZRmE A RRR]
B 17 ' (B BR #E BR 3K T8
40,937,000 7% JT # 78
BEARE T A AL R
TP 20172 A5
HEXRHEERIFSR
1R N/NGIE =
AT HESBRE - M
ZEREREITRG
EFAEFHEZERE
BITRMOZEBER M
- BRABFMHFE
FIER Bl & AR (b5
17 (MF3E10(a)) B AR I
R ZFEE ED
BPFTHE o

MR2018%F3 A28 -
KATRAEERE KX
PHABERRTHE
BRI EE T
96,000,000 A% fi%
H{E0.01/8 LA HK
FEERBINKE
HoARAHEEY
43,580,000/8 7t (1H%E
A R ¥ 35,261,000
To) o BEEITIRMDBIET
BREFHEBLER
B&H B ARG &

-

e L PCE I
BURE SR AR S -
WRARTABREAE
= SREH X
RIE BB AR R
ARANBAESH
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

(i)

(ir)

Share Premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time.

Other Reserves

The other reserves at 31 March 2016
represented the paid-in capital of
Along Grid, the operating subsidiary of
the Group, of RMB50,000,000.

Pursuant to the Reorganization
completed on 5 August 2016, the
Company, via a wholly owned
subsidiary, acquired the 100%
equity interests in Along Grid for a
consideration of RMB52,000,000.
The Company became the holding
company of the companies now
comprising the Group and accordingly,
the paid-in capital of Along Grid
was eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements since
that date.

From May 2016 to March 2017, the
Founding Shareholders contributed
HK$60,089,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB54,609,000) in
cash to Citimax Development. The
contributions were credited to other
reserves.

21

¢;w%mﬂl

B~ REERRE (&)

(d RENUEERBEW

()

(ii)

20184}

BREGHE

%Pﬁﬁ%Zﬁ%%
KRB ER] ~ sk
MH@H%@EZ%
EHERNREENE
F3415 (1961 F £ 358

BB B E RIEFT)
ME -

B

MR2016%F3 A31H Z
HihFEHBEARAH
BENBAREARE
mHEERAEARKE
50,000,0007T ©

B #ER2016F8 A5
BERXWEH " &
NAE—E2EHE
2R UREBEARE
52,000,000 7T Y B
BRI TG 2 SRR HE o
AR AR A ER B 4R K
AEB RS QD E HE
AR - BB 8
RRELE TR E
B ERENHR
A& A E R o

20165220174
38 AR MK S
2t & 5T & 60,089,000
BT (HHERHARE
54,609,0007C )R & o
ZAEBFAEMEE
& -
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21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

148 Annual Report 2018

Nature and Purpose of Reserves
(Continued)

(i) Statutory Reserves

In accordance with the relevant PRC
laws and regulations, the Company’s
subsidiary established in Mainland
China is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory reserves
until the reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distributions to equity holders. This
reserve can be utilised in setting
off accumulated losses or increase
capital of the subsidiary and is non-
distributable other than in liquidation.

(iv) Exchange Reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in
Note 2(r).

Capital Management

The Group's primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholders
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary

is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group's exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and bill receivables. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposure to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. For project contracts, the Group
generally requires customers to settle billings
in accordance with contracted terms, whereas
for sales of goods and provision of services,
the Group generally requires customers to
settle immediately after the completion of the
related transactions.

Credit terms of 30 to 120 days may be
granted to certain customers for progress
billings. Credit terms of one to three years
may be granted to customers for retention
receivables. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers. The Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 March 2018, 69%
(2017: 61%) of the trade receivables were due
from the Group's largest debtor, 97% (2017:
98%) of the trade receivables were due from
the Group's five largest debtors.

22

Bt g L

TRHEAREERESMIAZAR
EE

AEELEEBERT Y REE MR
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AARESR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and bill receivables are set out in
Note 15.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each
reporting year of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of each reporting year) and the
earliest dates the Group can be required to

pay:

OneForce Holdings Limited

22 REREEREBMIECZAR
EEE)

(a)

(b)

FERE (&)

AEEYHEERESAKHE
S B R H A H

= o
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22

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(o)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Trade payables
Other payables and
accruals

i

22 crEREEREMIAEZAR
EE(E)
(b) REBESRRK(E)
| 2018 | 2017
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash flow cash flow
within within
1 year or Carrying 1 year Carrying
on demand ENCIS or on demand amount
—FR, —ER
RER2 BERY
EHEES: 3 BATHIARERE
BERE IREE RERE BREE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T ARET T ARET T
B SR 5,606 5,606 2,917 2,917
E bR R
BRI X 12,579 12,579 8,188 8,188
18,185 18,185 11,105 11,105
© AAEEHE

Fair Value Measurement

Fair values of financial instruments carried at

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortized cost
are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

20184 %R

WHUR B ES R T
TR 1EE

72018 & } 2017 % 3 A 31
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TTHERBRAT 151



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAEN - AAREKIR)

23 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 23 REHASRIE
At the respective reporting year end dates, the REBEFE LR - RN TR IET AR
total future minimum lease payments under non- RETREREN 7 AR RERERIER
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: ECY N
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T N S
Within 1 year —&R 2,230 1,676
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER 1,672 =
3,902 1,676
The Group leases certain office premises through ANEBFB A HSSLHAERES
non-cancellable operating leases. These operating FRAZEF - ZEBHEL H S,
leases do not contain provisions for contingent lease AHRFALD S o
rentals.
24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24 EAEBSRS
(@ Key Management Personnel (a) FEEEASTMH
Remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel AEBFIESE A ST
of the Group, including amounts paid to the EORNAATEE(RHES
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8 BE)RAEFETESHE
and certain of the highest paid employees as 8 (AK oW E ) WEE - &
disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: BN
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMT T EUNSw
Short-term employee benefits 5 HE SR A 2,642 2,605
Contributions to defined A S E HRGR IRE B
contribution retirement scheme T 330 224
2,972 2,829

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”

(Note 6(a)).

152 Annual Report 2018
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24  MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24 EAXBEESIXS(E)
(Continued)

(b)  Transactions With Related Parties (b) EHEEBAZRS

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T N

Cash contributions (Note 21(d)(ii)) ~ IR& 3T & (MFaE21(d)i) - 54,609
Net (decrease)/increase in ERTGT B8R
non-interest bearing CRA) /1 hnFEE
advances granted (947) 49,326
()  Balances With Related Party (o) EEEERHz&H%

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ENS

Other payables (Note 19): H bR (fEE19) -
— Beijing Aige Reide Technology — It RARIRERHR
Company Limited* EE AT - 947

(d)  Applicability of the Listing Rules Relating d) HEEXZEBEHLWHRA

to Connected Transactions BREE

None of the above related party transactions WEEAEBEIRS/E L

falls under the definition of connected MRANE4AE 2 BHER H K

transaction or continuing connected BERERITEE -

transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

20185 FTHERERLR 153



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS RAR MY

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAEN - AAREKIR)

25 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 25 A FEEBBHREE

POSITION
2018 2017
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
bz ARMET T BN S
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERB AR
wE - =
Amounts due from a subsidiary FEUR —FEI BT B A B
TR 24,038 26,634
24,038 26,634
Current assets REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 70,003 -
NET ASSETS EERE 94,041 26,634
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR R 21(a)
Share capital ¥ 3,083 -
Reserves G 90,958 26,634
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 94,041 26,634
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of EEeN2018%6 822 B HLE RIS
directors on 22 June 2018. B o
Wang Dongbin Wu Hongyuan
Y KA
Director Director
= EE
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(BRBEZTHI - UARBFITR)
26 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 26 BEERERIERA
PARTY
At 31 March 2018, the directors consider the 201838310 r B2 AAEEH
immediate parents of the Group to be Union Sino K B £ &2 5 AUnion Sino Holdings
Holdings Limited, Long Eagle International Limited, Limited Long Eagle International
Main wealth Development Limited and Smart East Limited * Main wealth Development
Limited, which are incorporated in the BVI. These Limited 2 Smart East Limited ' 2%
entities do not produce financial statements available TR EBRLBEE ST - 2%
for public use. The directors consider the ultimate EEWERNMARFEHANTER
holding parties of the Group to be Mr Wu Zhanjiang, KEBEFRE  ANEENSKIZRST
Mr Cao Wei, Mr Li Kangying and Mr Wang Dongbin. BRESTHAE BIRe A g
ERFFRBEE -
27 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 27 H5£2018F3A831BILtEEBHE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT B R AR WIS » FEAR
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 RENTRERE
MARCH 2018
Up to date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZZHHERETZAE B2
IASB has issued a number of amendments and new HERIEEe D BHEIBEE] RITE
standards which are not yet effective for the year B ZEBETRFEDEHE20184F
ended 31 March 2018 and which have not been 3ANBIEFEENAEMNAEZS
adopted in these financial statements. These include BATEERER AN o SZE BT R ER|A
the following which may be relevant to the Group. YAl pEEANEFEBEE -
Effective for
accounting years
beginning on or after
RLATS HEAsk 2 1&
RIS T FE AR
Annual Improvement to BB B 7 e 25 2B Rl o 2 20 1 January 2018
IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle 2014-20167F jZ BffE] 2018F1H1H
IFRS 9, Financial instruments BB B 75 R S ZE BN 55 95 - 1 January 2018
TE T A 2018F1H1H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with B R B S R S YE Rl S5 1555 1 January 2018
customers REEFEAIBIMA 20181 A1H
IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions — BB fSBRERELZE S 1 January 2018
and advance consideration F225  HMERZ B R 20181 A1H
TEITCE
IFRS 16, Leases B B 5 i 5 AE BN 38 1655 1 January 2019
HE 201951 A1H
IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income BB ERELES 1 January 2019
tax treatments B3 AT HEFEZ 20195F1 A1 H
THEM
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and interpretations is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for IFRS 9 and IFRS
15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of
the standards may differ as the assessment completed
to date is based on the information currently available
to the Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standards are initially applied in the
group’s interim financial report for the six months
ended 30 September 2018. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in that financial report.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, IAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement. IFRS
9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, calculation of
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.
On the other hand, IFRS 9 incorporates without
substantive changes the requirements of IAS 39 for
recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
and the classification of financial liabilities.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2018 on a retrospective basis. The
Group plans to use the exemption from restating
comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 April 2018.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

Impairment

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The Group expects that the application
of the expected credit loss model will result in earlier
recognition of credit losses. However, a more detailed
analysis is required to determine the extent of the
impact.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts With Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognizing revenue from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
IAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
IAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the
accounting for revenue from construction contracts.
Based on the assessment completed to date, the
Group has identified the following areas which are
expected to be affected:
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts With Customers
(Continued)

(@

Timing of Revenue Recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in Note 2(qg). Currently, revenue
arising from the sales of software systems
and the provision of technical services is
recognised over time, whereas revenue from
the sales of hardware is generally recognised
when the risks and rewards of ownership have
passed to the customers.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. IFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

0) When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance,
as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates
or enhances an asset (for example
work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or
enhanced;

(iii) When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts With Customers
(Continued)

(@

Timing of Revenue Recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations, then
under IFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer
of control occurs.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of
adopting IFRS 15 on its financial statements.
Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group expects that the adoption of IFRS 15
will not materially impact how it recognises
revenue.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts With Customers
(Continued)

(b)

Significant financing component

IFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received
significantly in advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such
a policy when payments are significantly
deferred, which is currently not common in
the Group's arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a
policy when payments are received in advance.
Advance payments are not common in the
Group's arrangements with its customers.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative
effect transition method for the adoption
of IFRS 15 and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 April
2018. As allowed by IFRS 15, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements only
to contracts that are not completed before
1 April 2018. Since the number of “open”
contracts for sales of software systems and
the provision of technical services at 31 March
2018 is limited, the Group expects that the
transition adjustment to be made upon the
initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not be material.
The expected changes in accounting policies
as described above will not have a material
impact on the Group’s financial results from
the year ending 31 March 2019 onwards.

OneForce Holdings Limited
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(g), currently the Group
classifies leases into finance leases and operating
leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is
adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for
all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the current policy of recognizing
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on
a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over
the lease term.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2018 (Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as
a lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment
which are currently classified as operating leases. The
application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and
to impact on the timing of the expense recognition
in the statement of comprehensive income over
the period of the lease. As disclosed in note 23,
at 31 March 2018 the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to RMB3,902,000 for properties,
approximate 43% of which is payable beyond 1 year
after the reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognized as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once IFRS
16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a
more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of IFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into
or terminated between now and the adoption of IFRS
16 and the effects of discounting.

IFRS 16 is effective for annual years beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen,
the Group will apply the new definition of a lease
in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into
on or after the date of initial application. If the
practical expedient is not chosen, the Group will
need to reassess all of its decisions about which
existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the
new definition. Depending on whether the Group
elects to adopt the standard retrospectively or follow
a modified retrospective method of recognizing a
cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at the date of initial application, the
Group may or may not need to restate comparative
information for any changes in accounting resulting
from the reassessment. The Group has decided not to
early adopt IFRS 16 in its 2018 consolidated financial
statements.
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Definitions

Bx

"affiliate(s)"”

[EEEEAL]

" Articles of Association” or

“Articles”

[ARAEIZ AR Ik 4081 ]

"associate(s)”

[EHEEA

“Board”
[Ef2

“big data”

[ R8UR

“business day”

[&%H8]

“BVI"
[REBREZES]

“CAGR”

[EAFIBRE]

“Capitalisation Issue”

[EARME#TT]

“"CCASS”

[FhRAEH F 4]

f'_.'__ |

Wn

it P ey 1 e ]

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or
under direct or indirect common control with such specified person
EEESREEIET AR HIE s BT A T EER ARSI
Al B (AT B A A £

the articles of association of the Company approved by the written
resolutions of the Shareholders on 5 February 2018 and effective upon
Listing and as amended from time to time

EARREIMWABERZME - LREN20185F2 A5 A AEERZE R
A WH ETEAER - WA RHEET

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AR LTARAATE T ARE

the board of Directors of the Company

EARBESS

refer to information that is huge in amount and volume, which make
it not possible to achieve data collection, management and processing
into data that is capable of being used in decision making in business
operation

AR - BRI RNERSREE RSB EABBE I ERAMT
B EEERENEIER 12 BE  WEENKAEDRELE
FERE TR B MREIR

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal
banking business to the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or
public holiday in Hong Kong

ERBORIT —RAPIKEERRITES - BXIFEH - EHAK
EEARBENAE T

the British Virgin Islands
BRBRURS

compound annual growth rate, a method of assessing the average
growth of a value over time

BEAFERE  AEEREE -REFAANFEERNTTE

the issue of Shares to be made upon capitalisation of the share
premium account of the Company as referred to in the Prospectus of
the Company dated 12 February 2018

FEARRFN2018F2 A12 8 TIEMBREIRT POl AR R & E
AREAR b MEITIRG

the Central Clearing and Settlement System established and operated
by HKSCC
BEBBERYL

WIRER T REE R ESE
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Definitions

B

"CCBI Investments”

[ CCBI Investments |

“Chance Talent”

[ Chance Talent]

“China Southern Grid”

(BT EH]

"close associate(s)”

[EEHEAL]

“cloud computing”

“Companies Law” or
“Cayman Companies Law”

[RENE I HASRSRRNA]

“Companies Ordinance”

NGIESUN

“Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions)

Ordinance”
[ ARG R TR 60 1601

166 Annual Report 2018
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CCBI Investments Limited, an investment holding company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands
on 10 November 2004 and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Construction Bank Corporation, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 939) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601939)

FECCBI Investments Limited + —fE720045 11 H10B IR BH SR EE
BIFEM A AR BB R A R] - I A8 3 P E R (AR HX5% - 939)
R EBBHFRZE(RHMRI : 601939) LM AR R BIZEFZRITRMD
BRARINEEEZEMME AR

Chance Talent Management Limited, a company incorporated in the
BVI on 4 July 2007 with limited liability, which was wholly-owned by
CCBI Investments, a Substantial Shareholder, as at the date of this
report

f&Chance Talent Management Limited *+ —fE 320077 4B E S
BEBEESAMAIHER AR - RIS B BHCCBI Investments(— %
TERR)ZEHER

electric power grids covering Southern China, and managed by CSG,
one of the two major state-owned cross-provincial electric power grids
in the PRC

EEBEMTLENEN  BPEEHIEHEER  RTEMEEZERE
BEEMZ—

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EEA EMRAATE T ARE

A internet based way of developing, utilising and delivery of related
services. Normally, it involves providing extensible and visualised
resources via internet

EENEBENREREHEN  ERMZMER - BE S EEE
B RIR B RS ERE AL REFENER

the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Laws 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands
EENEMRSHEEANTNENG1ESIFEN  &ixh REET)

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEBEDFEC22ERNTURD] - LARHERT ~ Mz AR5 &R

the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance
(Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time
BEBENFEINERRIOBR KBGO GRD] - K ARHER] ~ #Fsk
AR A 75 A2k

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Definitions

Bx

“Company” or “the Company”

NS

“connected person(s)”

[BEAL]

"CSG”

[R5 B
"Director(s)”
(%]

“EIT
[ERAM1EH

“Founding Shareholders”
[BIFAR R |

“GDP”

[B A 4 EE 4R E

“Global Offering”
[ 23R E]

“Group”, “our Group”,

"“we” or “us”

[ E skl 5

“HK$" or “Hong Kong dollars” or
“HK dollars”

[l

"HKSCC”

[HEEE]

“"HKSCC Nominees”
[BBEERIEA

OneForce Holdings Limited (J H#EMRR AR A F]), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 July 2016 as an exempted
company with limited liability

BT HERBRAR - —HR2016F7ASAEHERSFMAK LA
EHRBRAT]

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

HEA LR T HHRE

f B g 75 B48(China Southern Power Grid Company Limited), an
Independent Third Party, a major state-owned cross-provincial electric
power grid company which is principally engaged in electric power
transmission

ErEEAEHE  REBYE=S —HEEHEGBEEAEHELNR  £2
WEEEADEAWE  FERLEEY

the director(s) of the Company
EARNRESR

enterprise income tax of the PRC

R BREMEH

collectively, Smart East, Union Sino, Main Wealth, Long Eagle, Mr.
Wang Dongbin, Mr. Wu Zhanjiang, Mr. Li Kangying and Mr. Cao Wei

f§Smart East * Union Sino * Main Wealth * Long Eagle ~ T 5 L4 -
REYTESE FRERERERE L ENFHE

gross domestic product

EEANLEERE

the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Offering
BEBLAFBEENEREE

the Company and its subsidiaries at the relevant time
R AR AR R RENE AT

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBETERET

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
BEBPREEARAA

HKSCC Nominees Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKSCC
BEAPREFE (REBA)ERAR - BAEENZENBAF
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Definitions

B=

“Hong Kong” or “HK"
[&%]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Regjistrar”

[HERNBFELDRE]
“Hong Kong Offer Shares”
(BB EERND

“Hong Kong Public Offering”
[HEAFREE]

“IMPG Grid”
[ARHEHEH]

"IMPG Group”

[AREEHEE ]

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

o A

(B E=7 |

“Inner Mongolia”

I2EEE
“International Offer Shares”
[ B B A

“International Offering”

[BIFREE ]

O wd il R
0 TR S ———

- m ey

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
EPBREBFRITTHR

Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
of the Company
ERRBIBEARMNBLELYREEZHFELERAT

the 48,000,000 Shares offered for subscription and issued pursuant to
the Hong Kong Public Offering
EIRBEEBAFEEREAERE L ERE178948,000,000/% A7

the offering by our Company of the Hong Kong Offer Shares for
subscription by the public in Hong Kong
BARRREHEFTBLERNUEBTENRRALRE

electric power grids covering Inner Mongolia, and managed by IMPG
Group, a state-owned provincial electric power grid in the PRC

ERENZSHERINESR  ATEEEEREBATLENEEEE

NEEEH (EF) AR EE 2 F(Inner Mongolia Power (Group)
Company Limited*), an Independent Third Party, a state-owned
provincial electric power grid company, together with its subsidiaries, is
principally engaged in the electric power transmission, transformation
and distribution in the west Inner Mongolia

BASHEN(RE)EREEILNA - BRBLE=F  —RHPEEE4
REBMLRR) - BREMNBAREERFEATLOERE BENELE

a person, persons, company or companies which is or are independent
of, and not connected with (within the meaning under the Listing
Rules), any directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any of their respective associate(s)
BEYNARASIEEMAMBARINEMNES  FETHRABXEE
BRRFEESENBEA  BEZZALHERE(ERR LR
B EM AL R A

Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region of the PRC

EPERREBAR

the 48,000,000 Shares offered for subscription and issued pursuant to
the International Offering
EIRIRBIFR 2 1R 2 & DA IR AE L B 3897/948,000,0001% A% 11

the placing of the International Offer Shares

REReEEA R SRR R ERD
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Definitions

B=

“Internet+"

[ BB+

“internet of things”

[ )

“Listing”
[k

“Listing Rules”
[ Er#RAll

“Long Eagle”

[Long Eagle]

“Main Board”

=

“Main Wealth”

[ Main Wealth ]

b=
g e

T

“Memorandum of Association” or

“Memorandum”

[ARAREAZ KA Ik K4

o e a.i‘...'ﬂ

=
=

g g

By using information technology and internet platform to deeply
integrate internet with traditional industries so as to evolve new form
of economic development which using internet as infrastructure and
implementation tool

MAEERBRERMARERETE  BEMERERTRETRAER
B TERE B AEBMERERREMER TENKLBERNTE

A information accessing media that is based on internet and
telecommunication network, which connects all individually traceable
devices, and is characterised with smart, advanced and connected
three key features

—EAEREHE EREEESEEARE  FMBEAEE IS
MEBYEHRER GG ANEE  HABSE  tE - BE=
& & 2R

listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 2 March 2018
RN 20185F3 A2 A R B Fr ETh

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BB RPTES EMARR - ETRERT - #Rg AR ER

LONG EAGLE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, a company incorporated in the
BVI on 26 November 2015 with limited liability, which is wholly owned
by Mr. Cao Wei, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

FELONG EAGLE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED + —fE/A2015F 11 26 A
REEAHEAMKXINBERAR - AEEAE(—BETERFLE
MR —)2EHAR

the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PRSP AR

MAIN WEALTH DEVELOPMENT LIMITED, a company incorporated in
the BVI on 18 March 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly owned
by Mr. Li Kangying, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

FEMAIN WEATH DEVELOPMENT LIMITED + —f/420165F3 A 18H K
REREAHESAMKINERAR  ATZNESE(—BEFERER
B R —) 2B HE

the memorandum of association of the Company adopted upon
incorporation of the Company (as amended from time to time)

BARA B ARB MK ERANESEERAH (G TRERT)
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Definitions

Bx

“Mr. Cao Wei"”
[EREE]
“Mr. Li Kangyin”

[ ]

“Mr. Wang Dongbin”

[ EHRST A
“Mr. Wu Zhanjiang”
[ REUT A

“New Reform”

e

“Offer Shares”
[R5

“PRC” or “China”
[

“Reorganisation”
[E#4]

“RMB”
[ARE]

170 Annual Report 2018

Mr. Cao Wei (E3), a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

KERRL  REBRRNMAIMBIRZ —

Mr. Li Kangying (Z413%), a Substantial Shareholder and one of the
Founding Shareholders

BFEREEL  REBERRRAIRRER 2 —

Mr. Wang Dongbin (F33H), an executive Director and chairman
of the Board, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

BIRMAE  RRTESNESEIR TEBRRNMAIMBIRZ —

Mr. Wu Zhanjiang ({2 8%/T), a Substantial Shareholder and one of The
Founding Shareholders

BRECTELE  REERRMBIPHRERZ —

Several Opinions on Further Deepening the Reform of the Electric
Power System ({(FARE— T FELENEHRNENETER)), a
reform opinion promulgated by the State Council in March 2015
regarding, among other things, the acceleration of the construction
of the electric power exchange platform and the permission of private
electric power retailing companies to purchase electricity from electric
power generation companies and re-sell to end users
(EARE—ZRMEENBRIRENETER) - —HR201 5¢3H =2
BEEMHNE - AREREH(EFEE)MRERENRSTFAR
HAELABNTERFIHBEERARIBENEEE I TRmAP

the Hong Kong Offer Shares and the International Offer Shares,
collectively
EEBRERD RERBEERGE

the People’s Republic of China, except where the context requires
otherwise, excludes Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan
fEhEARLNE - BRIEXESAMIE
HRITHE R A

BRTEERE - PEIRP]

refers to the reorganisation arrangement undergone by the Group in
preparation for the Global Offering
EAEEAESRENBEMETHEALH

Renminbi, the official currency of the PRC

EPBEEEB AR

OneForce Holdings Limited
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Definitions

B=

“SaasS” Software as a Service, is a model of providing software system related
services via interet. Under Saa$, service providers deploy software
system in servers, and users can subscribe required services based on
their specific demands via internet. The underlying service fees are
calculated based the scope and length of services subscribed

[ EX{5 BD AR | R IEERE AR HERARENES - HEASERRGSR—HE
ERGR L - AFAUREECERF R  BREHREnHERTE
B EREM IR - WIRE BRSNS KRG R E R S

EA -

“SFC” the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

[FEEe ] BERBEFLEEREREEE

"SFO" the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

[ &5 NS GRG] BEBEDESTIEBHFMPEERD - KARHER] - /TS AT
B

“SGCC Grid” electric power grids managed by SGCC Group, one of the two major
state-owned cross-provincial electric power grid in the PRC

[BIREHNFIEH] EHEREEAREEEENER  ETEMERNEGEEEME s —

“SGCC Group” Bl X E492 A)(State Grid Corporation of China), an Independent

Third Party, a major state-owned cross-provincial electric power grid
company, together with its subsidiaries and operating companies, are
principally engaged in electric power transmission, transformation
and distribution in the PRC, other than the west Inner Mongolia and
Southern China

[BREHALRIEE] EERE ?E Al RBVE=F —HEIrEZEEEBEERAAR - EFA
HBRARKREERR  TERENTE(ARLA LA AERIN)
BWE - ZE&E&%%‘%

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01
each, subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the
Stock Exchange

[zt ] EARREREEC.OEITLZ @R - A LABTTRE L B & W it
AT

"Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of the Share(s)

AR ERINFEAA

“Smart East” SMART EAST LIMITED, a company incorporated in the BVI on 27

November 2015 with limited liability, which is wholly owned by Mr.
Wang Dongbin, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

[Smart East | FESMART EAST LIMITED » —RER2015F 11 A27B RN A BRE LB ET
M EVBRAR - ATRBEE(—BEERBERAPHREZ —) 2
BEHa
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Definitions

Bx

“Southern China”
[mARE]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8 32 P ]

“subsidiary(ies)”
[T

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
Ex:3e
“Takeovers Code”

[ =r Al

“Tianjin TEDA"

[ R

“Union Sino”

[ Union SinoJ

“US$” or “US Dollar”
E

AT
[RER ]

172 Annual Report 2018

collectively, the five southern provinces in the PRC, including
Guangdong, Guangxi, Yunan, Guizhou and Hainan

EPERERSENOGE  BRER  EA  E8 - ENKEE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEREABME R ZFERATR

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance

REA R RGHIRE T &R E

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EEA ETARAE TRZANEE

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs in Hong
Kong as approved by the SFC and as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time

BEBRARWE S ERMBETR > KRESHELKTRE
7]~ HFRB AR M B

KyEFRE RS HAR A F(Tianjin TEDA Jinlian Electric Power
Company Limited*), which is an electric power generation company
as well as electric power distribution company established in the PRC
operating electric power grid at county level

BREREZBBENARAR - A—ERFBEK I NEREE 2 ELR

BRI MECE AR

UNION SINO HOLDINGS LIMITED, a company incorporated in the BVI
on 4 January 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly owned by Mr.
Wu Zhanjiang, a Substantial Shareholder and one of the Founding
Shareholders

FEUNION SINO HOLDINGS LIMITED * 7£20165F1 4B R ABR XS
AMABERAR - RREVIEE(—BEERRLEMKRR 2 —)
2EHE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

BEBDEEERET

Value-added tax
FEIG{ER

OneForce Holdings Limited

al

E.J
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